REGULAR MEETING
OF
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
AND
CACHUMA CONSERVATION RELEASE BOARD
at Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board Office
3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105

&)

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
Monday November 20, 2006
Approximate Start Time

AGENDA

COMB CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL. (COMB Board of Directors.) (T winnie).

[CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL TO DISCUSS
PENDING LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
54956.9 (). ONE CASE: CRAWFORD-HALL V COMB, SUPERIOR COURT
OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA, CASE NO. 1171135. (30

wminites)

PUBLIC COMMENT. (Public may address the Board on any subject matter not on
the agenda and within the Board’s jurisdiction. See “Notice to the Public” below.)
(5 mrinntes)

CONSENT AGENDA. (For Board Action by Vote on One Motion Unless
Member Requests Separate Consideration.) (2 minntes)

a. Minutes
¢ October 23, 2006 Regular Board Meeting,
b. Investment of Funds

e [Financial Reports

e Investment Reports
c. Payment of Claims

REPORT FROM THE AUDITOR FOR FISCAL YEAR 2005-2006:
RECOMMENDATION TO ACCEPT THE AUDIT AND DISPOSITION OF
EXCESS FUNDS. (For Board action.) (20 nznntes)

REPORTS FROM THE MANAGER. (For information.) (3 azinntes)
Water Storage

Water Production & Use, SWP Accounting

Opetations Report

Verbal Report - Cachuma Reservoir Current Conditions

mo oo



7. LAURO DAM SAFETY OF DAMS PROJECT. (Forinformation.) (5 winufes)

a. Execution of Laure Dam SOD Repayment Agreement

b. Verbal Report - Reclamation Transfer Inspection held November 14, 2006

c. Verbal Report - Habitat Mitigation Plan

8. REPORT ON LAURQ DEBRIS BASIN REHABILITATION PROJECT. (For

information.) (5 wifmfeﬁ

9. DEVELOPMENT OF INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT

PLAN. (See CCRB Item No. 6)(7 wrinuite)

10. CACHUMA PROJECT RENEWAL MASTER CONTRACT INTEREST RATE

ADJUSTMENT. For information) (5 minntes)

a. Counsel’s Opinion Letter Regarding COMB’s Approval of Revised Interest

Rate.
b. Follow-up letter to Kirk Rodgers, Reclamation Regional Director
c. Revised Interest Rate Calculation

11. MEETING SCHEDULE.

e November 27, 2006 Joint Special COMB/CCRB Board Meeting 2:00-5:00

P.M., at COMB Office
o December 18, 2006 following CCRB at 2:15 P.M., COMB Office

12, COMB ADJOURNMENT.
NOTICE TO PUBLIC

Public Comment: Any member of the public may address the Board on any subject within
the jurisdiction of the Board that is not scheduled for a public hearing before the Board.
The total time for this item will be limited by the President of the Board. If you wish to

address the Board under this item, please complete and deliver to the Secretary of the Board

before the meeting is convened, a “Request to Speak”™ forms including a description of the
subject you wish to address.

Americans with Disabilities Act: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,
if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Cachuma
Operation and Maintenance Board office at (805) 687-4011 at least 48 hours prior to the

meeting to enable the Board to make reasonable arrangements.

[This Agenda was Posted at 3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, CA
at Santa Barbara City Hall, Santa Barbara, CA and at Member District Offices and Noticed
and Delivered in Accordance with Section 54954.1 and .2 of the Government Code.]



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING
of the
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
held at the
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board Office
3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, CA
Monday, October 23, 2006

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

The meeting was called to order at 3:37 p.m. by President Chuck Evans, who
chaired the meeting. Those in attendance were:

Directors present:

Chuck Evans Goleta Water District
Robert Lieberknecht Carpinteria Valley Water District
Das Williams City of Santa Barbara
Jan Abel Montecito Water District
Others present:
Kate Rees Chip Wullbrandt
Bob Roebuck Steve Mack
Gary Kvistad Alex Keuper
Janet Gingras David McDermott

2. [Closed Session]: Conference with Legal Counsel to Discuss Pending
Litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (a). One Case:
Crawford-Hall V COMB, Superior Court of California, County of Santa
Barbara, Case No. 1171135.

The Board went into closed session at 3:38 p.m. Closed session ended at 4:54
p.m. There was nothing to report out of closed session.

3. Public Comment
There were no comments from the public.
4. Consent Agenda

a. Minutes: September 25, 2006 Regular Board Meeting
b. Investment of Funds

Financial Report
Investment Report
¢. Payment of Claims ITEM #__Ya

PAGE '




Board of Directors Meeting
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
October 23, 2006

Director Abel moved to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Director
Lieberknecht. Motion carried, 5/0/2, Director Loudon was absent and Director
Abel abstained. ‘

5. Reports from the Manager
d. Cachuma Reservoir Current Conditions
Date 10/23/2006

Lake elevation 746.42 feet

Storage 177,406 acre feet
Rain (for the month to date) 0.16 inches

Rain YTD (for the season to date)  0.16 inches

Fish Release-Hilton Creek 12.8 acre feet per day
Month to Date Fish Release 306 acre feet

Month to Date Spill 0.00 acre feet

6. Meeting with Kirk Rodgers, Reclamation Mid-Pacific Regional Director,
October 17, 2006
a. Cachuma Renewal Master Contract Interest Rate Adjustment
b. Lauro Dam SOD Repayment Agreement :

For several years, COMB staff has been attempting to reopen negotiations with
Reclamation in order to adjust the Cachuma Renewal Master Contract M&I
interest rate, At the regular Board meeting on September 25, 2006 the Board
authorized Ms Rees to meet with Kirk Rodgers, Reclamation’s Regional Director,
On October 16, 2006, Ms Rees and Greg Wilkinson of Best Best & Krieger met
with Mr. Rodgers regarding the Cachuma Renewal Master Contract interest rate
adjustment and the Lauro Dam SOD Repayment Agreement. Ms Rees asked that
the Cachuma Project receive the same 3.5% interest rate as the Friant Water
Authority renewal contracts and that the negotiated water use allocations in the
Lauro SOD Repayment Agreement remain at 50.72% irrigation and 49.28% M&I
Mr. Rodgers explained that because the Friant contracts were not negotiated in the
same manner as the Cachuma contract it would not be appropriate for Cachuma to
receive the same negotiated M&I interest rate. Mr. Rodgers addressed the
Cachuma interest rate and the Lauro Dam SOD Repayment Agreement to gether.
He stated he would agree to sign the Lauro SOD Repayment Agreement as
accepted by the COMB Board in March 2006, if the Member Units agreed to
accept a 4.59% revised interest rate for the interest payable on the M&I capital
costs of the Renewal Master Contract. This offer is outside the normal
Reclamation procedural requirements for contract changes; therefore, Mr. Rodgers
has requested an answer as soon as possible.

COMB is not a signatory to the Cachuma Renewal Master Contract. However,
COMB’s General Counsel has suggested that COMB may act on behalf of its
Member Units as provided under Article 3.1 Powers of the 1996 Amended and
Restated Agreement for establishment of a Board of Control to Operate and
Maintain the Cachuma Project. Gary Kvistad, counsel for ID #1, was of the
opinion that an amendment to the Renewal Master Contract may be needed to
secure the proposed interest rate instead of simple approval by COMB’s Board.

ITEM #__Ya
PAGE 2




Bourd of Directors Meeting
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Bourd
Qclober 23, 2006

10.

Mr. Hair disagreed and after discussion, Mr. Kvistad requested an “opinion letter”
from Mr. Hair regarding Board approval to accept the revised interest rate.

(the Board next considered item# 12)
Approval of Cachuma Project Renewal Master Contract Interest Rate
Adjustment

Director Williams moved that the COMB Board of Directors, acting on behalf of
the Cachuma Project Member Units, accept Reclamation’s proposed revised
interest rate of 4.59% for payment of the M&I portion of the remaining capital cost
of the Cachuma Project from October 1, 2005 through September 30, 2015 and to
direct staff to send a letter to Kirk Rodgers, Regional Director, Mid-Pacific
Region, accepting the proposed revised interest rate and request written
acknowledgment and approval of the revised interest rate. Seconded by Director
Abel, passed 6/0/1, Director Loudon was absent.

Lauro Dam SOD Repayment Agreement

There was no further discussion or action needed following the action taken by the
Board on item #12. With the Boards acceptance of the revised interest rate of
4.59% for payment of the M&I portion of the remaining capital cost of the
Cachuma Project, Mr. Rodgers agreed to sign the Lauro SOD Repayment
Agreement with no changes to the negotiated Trrigation (50.72%) and M&I
(49.28%) percent water use allocations.

Update on Lauro Debris Basin Rehabilitation Project

Ms Rees reported having received a revised Lauro Debris Basin Rehabilitation
Project design from Flowers Engineering and has requested one cost estimate from
Cushman Contracting Corporation to provide the Board with an idea of the cost for
a smaller project. The Ad Hoc project committee of Director Evans, Director
Williams, Steve Mack and Kevin Walsh will be meeting with staff prior to
bringing the new design and cost estimate before the Board in November.

Status Report and Request for Increased Budget for Remaining Tasks for
Facilitation Services for Reorganization

This was discussed during the CCRB meeting item #10, and there was nothing
further to add.

Director Abel moved to increase the COMB budget by $7,710 for the remaining
services of John Jostes” facilitation of the reorganization, seconded by Director
Williams, passed 6/0/1, Director London was absent.

Development of Integrated Regional Water Management Plan

Ms Rees reported on the status of the IRWMP MOU during the CCRB meeting
Item #8, there was nothing further to discuss.
ITEM #__Ya.

PAGE 3




Board of Directors Meeting
Cachuma Operttion & Maintenance Board
October 23, 2006

11.

12,

13.

14.

APPROVED:

Response to the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement
District No. 1 Letter to the CCRB and COMB Board of Directors, September
22,2006

'The letter was thoroughly discussed during the CCRB meeting, Item #11, there
was nothing more to add.

Director Williams moved to send the response letter from COMB to ID #1’s Board
of Trustees, as revised during the CCRB meeting, seconded by Director
Lieberknecht, passed 6/0/1, Director Loudon was absent.

Approval of Cachuma Project Renewal Master Contract Interest Rate
Adjustment

Action was taken after discussion of Item # 6.
Meeting Schedule

The COMB Board concurred with the CCRB Board to change the regular Board
meeting from November 27" to November 20" so that Michelle Ouellette could
attend the COMB closed session.

They also concurred to schedule the next Joint Special COMB/CCRB meeting
for November 27, 200 from 2:00 to 5:00 p.m.

COMB Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:16 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Kate Rees, Secretary of the Board

Approved

Unapproved /

Chuck Evans, President

sec.comb/boardminutes/10.23.06COMB Minutes.doc

ITEM #__Y%a____
PAGE Y




comb2 .

Balance Sheet
As of October 31, 2006

12:40 PM

11114/06
Accrual Basis

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1050 - GENERAL FUND

1100 - REVOLVING FUND

TRUST FUNDS
1220 - RENEWAL FUND
1210 - WARREN ACT TRUST FUND

Total TRUST FUNDS

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1010 - PETTY CASH
1200 - LAIF
1300 - DUE FROM CCRB .
1302 - ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE-CARP
1303 - SOD Act Assessments Receivable
1400 - PREPAID INSURANCE
1401 - WIC INSURANGE DEPOSIT

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
1500 - VEHICLES
1505 - OFFICE FURN & EQUIPMENT
1510 - TRAILERS
1515 - FIELD EQUIPMENT
1525 - PAVING
1550 - ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATICN

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assels ]
1910 « LT SOD Act Assess Receivable

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2200 - ACCGOUNTS PAYABLE

Total Accounts Payahle

Other Current Liabilities
2550 - VACATION/SICK
2561 - BRADBURY DAM S0OD ACT
2590 - DEFERRED REVENUE
Payroll-DepPrm Admin
Payroll-DepPrm Ops

Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Lang Term Liabilities
2603 - LT 50D Act Liabllity - Lauro
2600 - Lease Obligation Payable
2601 - Note Payable SBB&T
2602 - SOD Act Liability-Long Term

Total Long Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Equity

Oct 31, 06

158,918.75
4,085.43

5,287.34
29,074.62

34,361.96
198,366.14

400.00
B15,608.44
50,8997.78
100,480.09
48,902.00
11,696.72
3,906.00

1,033,081.03

1,231 447 17

241,943.65
102,547.22
97,803.34
305473.34
22,350.00
-527,362.02

242 755.53

6,423,143.07
£,423,143.07

7,897,345.77

74,936.02
74,936.02

61,815.80
49,902.00
34,361.96
35.00

4.62
146,119.38

221,055.40

660,000.00
29,810.84
100,480.09
5,763,143.07
6,553,434.00

6,774,489.40

ITEM #

PAGE

th

l

Page 1




12:40 PM ) comb2 -

1114106 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2006
QOct 31, 06
3000 - Opening Bal Equity ' 0.95
3901 - Retained Earnings 785,863.52
Net Income 336,991,850
Total Equity 1,122,856.37
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 7,897,345.77
ITEM #__ b

Page 2

PAGE —




%6 Ly L1267 00°958 £8'85E afiea||y 10398.)(] - 100G
_ seed J0joal|d -+ 00DS
ANLVHLSININAY B TYHINID - 6660

%E'ET L2 EHG'0E- 00°066"LY 6490¢'LL SASNILXT YIHLIO0 - 00SE 2oL
L EE EO Ll 00°000°Z JE'R9E T BujuRJL - 80SE
%O'CE $O'ESt' - 00°000'8 96'9e5'L SNOBUE|[83S]Y - SOSE
%L 82 8z'9:8'2- . 00'000't viezl't san|AIag JAUIC 2 VSN - POSE
%L2E [AN:L ST 00'06L'aL BE'LEL'Y SUQHEIIUNUILIOT « EQGE
%E'LE 6L°€80'%- 00°005's LE'oLb'Z suuoyun - Z05
%802 LE'OBE'- 00°00E's . E9'GOE"L S2IGN - LOSE

S3SNIdXI YIHLO - 00SE

%OVl aLben‘zy- 00°000'0% Z8'sle's S3MddNS ¥ SIVINALYN - 00VE [El0L
"%e 0 06'926'6- 00°000'01 oLiE SIHOAlBSEY « EOPE
%L LE GlgLL'el- 00'000'02 82'8Z2'9 speoy @ sBulpng - zope
YLE'S ES*LEG'GL- 00'o00'oe ¥'Be0'i ISIIN B BAIRA USIBN UNPUOD - LOPE

S3M1ddNS 7 STYIHALYI - D0PE

%0'EE S0°0889'E8- 00'000'6 S6'6LE'LE HOAY1 LOYHLINOD « DOEE (B1OL
%00 00°000'0zZ- 00°000°02 0o'n sanjalag os) ‘Bupsewbug . yogg
%4 BE _ BB°L9v'0E- ao'noo‘cs LO'BEG'S) si|oAlasay . £0EE
%189 EV'B6EL'Y 00'000'S) 501201 speoy ' sbuip|ing - Z0gg
%€'gl) + E9'HOE'S- 00'000'01 IE'LED'L 2S|IW B BAlEA U8jal inpuod .- Loee

HOEV1 LOVHINGD - 00EE

%8'pL 0z v6¥'001- 00°000'8E L 09'508' L1 LNINLINO3I 2 HAA 00ZE [B10L
%a'ZZ gLeas L L- 00'000'51 28'YIP'E _sSnosueltessiy - pOzZe
%2'Ge BEELE L1 00°c00'ee ¥h9gL's Iejuay awd|nby - £oz¢
%GE 26°299'81- 00°000°0S EO'ZLE'L [eydeq pax|d - Zozge
WEET 6L'200'c2- 00°00D'0E L8'Z66'9 aoly dinbgsaja)yap - L0ZE

. AINIWLINDST 2 HAA 00ZE

%GB 18'ge8'voe- 00'ZeE's02 £t'e62'002 HOEVT 00LE I2j0)
%00 00°L0S'95- 0o'Log'geh 00'0 18U30 - Hogv 00LE
%82 lgrLio'e DE'LEL'L E0F¥0'E sd Yy dwag jioided . gaLE
%L °98 18’604 e 046408 6B'6EL' sdQ vQId dwo) [josfed . gaLe
%E'BE HO'BEY G- 00'698'60 Z60LE'0E 543d - S5LE
%.'62 Co LS BE- 00°Leg' L ¥} . GE'BCE'LY dwiog sIsyIoM 2 YieaH - DS LE

’ HOHYT 00LE
asuadxy
) . C9'EE0'2ES 1MoLy 55045
mw.NND.Nmm atoau| |ejoy.
SU'ZE0'EEG . ANNIAZY 000¢ tejOL
oo'o alwas 9| - 0Z0E
|G'g rm_m_, awoau) jselau| - gLQL
mw.mmm_w n_.nmo.m_._:m_:mm JUBLUSSISSY - CO0E
19°400'%16 18Bpng WRO - LOOE
ANNIAIY 000€
awoay
T jeBipng jo % 18Bpng JeA0 § 1eBpng 903190~ Inr
W.LOL
. 9002 Jaqo3a0 Ybnoays Ainp _ s|seg jenJoay
jenoy ‘sA Jebpng sso7 R jyoid 0iwlitE

Zqwoa Wd 0F:ZL

3

ITEM #_tb

PAGE



62 abed
$5°1L06

WLy ge'epz'ac- 00°000‘00L ge'ess'ty
%81t SE'OYE'RG- 00°000'001 SO'ESL'LY

%58 00vbL'EG- 00"000'00L 00°058'g
%68 00°¥¥L'eB- . 00'000'001 00°0s8'8

Y%b9 A A R AR 00'000'045'L g9'250'26
%E'Q LL'GEL'EE- 00°000’001 BZ'vie'e
%' CR¥05'6.LE- 00'000'00% BI'SB4'02
%9t BE'EBE'ELS- 00°000'008 20919l
Y%t 22'9£8'08e2- 00°000'008 EZ'EOL'G
%1 pE 5)'8v6'ge- 00°000°'05 ca°L50° 2L
%0l 68'Z¥G'eS- 00°000'09 FLEGY'D

%005 00°000's- 00°000'04 00000

%l 6 6l'ecE'eZe- 00'8L0'66Y GZ'oRo'sit
%69 0g'gLL’L- 00'002'+ 0z'es
%b'e B9°2586'L- 000002 50 A
Y%aF'2E Zl'gge'e- 00°000's ge°L18'L
%002 65'L09'e- 00'008'y ¥'B68
%oGr 0 £/0'GL- 00'002'22 05'229'2)
%00 00'000°2- 00°000°L o000
%8G NG'E0R'S- 00°05L'9 og'aye
%9V oL°1L66'2- 00'00e’s +8'80E'Z
%E'GL Z¥'SED't- 00°000'G BE'H06
R (YAVA Ir'eie's- 00°000'0} BSveL'y
%O'LE EQ'GEB'E- 00°054'S LEPLRL
%0°02 EF'96L L 00'co0'e L5E08'L
%80t oL'eL9'sE" 00°L¥¥'LE 828’51
%E'0E 85°8/0"G- oo'sle'ss Zv'9Es'Ee
%962 ¥E'GeZ'0E- 00°E66'2Y 9.20L'2)
%L6e £4°L66'L- G6'Z¥8'2 Nm.mwm.
%982 LLE19'g SO'B5L'EL mm‘mmv.m
%b'0E 66'EEG'EL- 00°Ze9'se E.mmm.m
Y%L 0% 98'a0+¥'8e- 00'B6E"L¥ E..omm.m_.
%9°96 00°£82'L- 00'009'8E Qo'ELL'8e
%00 00°005's- ¢o'ons's 0a'o .
%962 00'EL0'p)- 00°000'02 oo.hmm,m
%h82e 00's08'55- 00°000'22 00°56E°91
%G e LVERL'9- 00'0+8'01 mm..o (N4

T ..umm.a:m jo% 18Bpng JaA0 § 1ebpng 20 120 - I

Iviol

9002 J2q0320 yBnoay Ajnp
|en)ay ‘SA Jabpng sso R 1101d
Zquwos

ASNIdX3A LSIUALNI - 9004
NOLLYSLLIT 2 V93T - D004 1m0 L

/513 08-diNd-1esunog osads . zoog,
NOWLYDLLIT ® Y93 - 0004

IDVANVAE WHOLS - 0049 (B30,

S00Z afieweq wiolsg - LOVY
FAYAYJ WHOLS - 009

$123rodd IvIo3dS - 0003 [H0L

Buiddey pue g9 - 1609
uopElIqeYay &njanys 908 - 9509
qELSY BIS AU 2 BAIBA D08 - G600

uBjsaq @ ueid Aoudwy 995 - 260
Jjudsy spunoasyBplg awoo - 1-0609
vavos - 2009

SLOArOUd TVID34S - 0009

ueld JBI teyep ‘Bay pajesBaojul . pLag

FAULYYLSININGY 2 TVHANID - 66861 (210

uopeodsuel) - 2e€5
vojjeliodu) 211gnd - LEES
S2OUBIBJUONJSARI] UJLIPY - OEES
suopduosqng/Buel s dwg . gzeg
uBjNSUOY lojej|[iney LIUPY . 0ZES
5]3s5Y PoX|d UjWpY - 915

sanq diysiaquiap - GLe6

safliin « ¥Les

SUOpRBRMLUNWLWOY - £LEG
sasUadx3 ujwpy asyy - ZLES
sases)/dinb3g a0 - L1ES

dx3 saiyosebersod - pLeg
e)s|SSY AARNSIUWRY - BOES
Jafieuely aapegs|UIpY . LOCS
Ae(eg Jabeuel . 0ocS

ulwIpY IYYoIN ditog . 5925
uipy yod dwog - gags

SM3ad - 0525

dwod sIaIop § UilesH - L0ZS
asueinsuy L4198 « 0028

xe) Juewafo|dittaugy - 0815
UpNY - (-LoLg

IeGa7 . goLG

S84 J0ja8aiq - 0005 {210,

sjSEQ |BMID0Y
0/ L1}

. Nd 021

ITEM #_ 4L

Y

FAGE



ot abey

ITEM #_Yh_

5

PAGE

b0 b 06°ZEC'ZLS'E 00'kpE'SEZ'E- 06’ L66'OEE atwoauy jaN
%pgl SZ'0LE'DPO'Z- 00'LYE'SEZ'S 5/'080'CAS asuadxg jejo)
oLo- TI0MAYd [m0),
a0 g409-550.D
260~ S5010)
TIONAVd
wlpngso s 1eBpng 1aA0 § 1aBpng 90 190 - P
V1oL .
900z Jaqojag ybnosy Ainp siseg [Endooy
[en)oy "SA 18Bpng sso ¥ 1oid S0/ LIk

Zquwioo Wd 0v:ZL



e - - o .
* Washington Mutual  YOUR GUARANTEED GREAT RATE MONEY MARKET STATEMENT

P.Q. BOX 1008
NORTHRIDGE, CA 91328-1098
ol G- mi
RECEIER
- | Wy B 6 203

This Statement Covers
Guse i From: 10/01/06
) Through: 10/31/06

Need assistance?

To reach us anytime,
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD ) call 1-800-788-7000
3301 LAUREL CANYON RD 294248 or visit us at wamu.com
SANTA BARBARA CA 93105-2017 '

Get a quote for Safeco auto insurance today. With just a few minutes of your time, we'll give you an instant auto quote that's
customized just for you. If you like the quote, we can start your coverage today. Go to www.WaMulns.com or call 1-800-685-9551.

Your Account at a Glance I

Beginning Balance 55,059.63 | Interest Earned $237.71
Checks Pald ‘ -$238,453.00 Annual Percentage Yield Earned - 269%
Other Withdrawals . -$10.00 YTD Interest Paid $270.94
Deposits +$238,690.71 YTD interast Withheld $0.00
Ending Balance . $5,287,34

| Date Description S - Withdrawals {-) Depaosits {+) |

$86,439.00

LR LRI R TSR EIN AU N IRREINI]L HIRNIE SRIRRRRIQNI]

Checks Paid *Indicates check out of sequence
Check Numker l Date Amount Paid Check Number Date Amount Paid
Cloz2z | 10/17 I $238,453.00

MEMO TO: Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Kathleen Rees, Secretary
SUBJECT: COMBINVESTMENT POLICY
The above statement of investment activity for the month of _OL@b_QL_, 2006, complies with legal

requirements for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. I hereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all Washington Mutual Bank investments of this agency for the period

indic?
Sdtie Bee CTEM . 4b

Secretary o | PAGE __b




q " o )
. Washington Mutual " YOUR GUARANTEED GREAT RATE MONEY MARKET STATEMENT

P.O. BOX 1098
NORTHRIDGE, CA 91328-1098

iy

T
]

R' é"l ;
Hat il

=

¥
]

- Wiy 0@ i

) ’ . This Statement Covers
CACHURL Dksh il From: 10/01/06
F" PR SR Through: 10/31/06

Need assistance?

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD To reach us anytime,
TRUST FUND call 1-800-788-7000
3301 LAUREL CANYON RD Hanaas

or visit us at wamu.com

SANTA BARBARA CA 93105-2017
Llsd bl dialsliliasllhlilonenlliald i

Your Guaranteed Great Rate Money Market Detail Information

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD Account Number: 871-849358-3
TRUST FUND - Washington Mutual Bank, FA

Geta quote for Safeco auto insurance today. With just a few minutes of your time, we'll give you an instant auto quote that's
customized just for you. If you like the quote, we can start your coverage today. Go to www.WaMulns.com or call 1-800-685-9551.

Your Account at a Glance - |

Beginning Balance $12,613.68 Interest Earned - $34.94
" Checks Paid - %0.00 Annual Percentage Yield Earned 208%
Other Withdrawals .$0.00 | YTD Interest Paid . $395.80
Deposits : . +$16,460.94 YTD Interest Withheld $0.00
Ending Balance . $29,074.62
; [ Date Description , Withdrawals (1) Deposits (+) |
10/17 Customer Deposit ' $16,426.00

LU NGE TR ARLLIRUIRY R AR L

34
MEMO TO: Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Kathleen Rees, Secretary

»,

SUBJECT: COMB INVESTMENT POLICY

The above statement of investment activity for the month of Q@ QL 2006, complies with legal
requirements for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. I hereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all Washington Mutual Bank investments of this agency for the period

indicated
J%Mﬁuﬂ ITEM #_4b
Secretary PAGE 7




STATE OF CALIFORNIA . ¢

OFFICE OF THE TREASURER
SACRAMENTO

PHILIP ANGELIDES, Treasures

Local Agency Investment Fund - RECEIER
PO Box 942800 T
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 MOV I3 7008
(916) 653-3001 N )
treasonaron goviprmiadif CASHUBA G2 senpy

October, 2006 Statement
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
Attn:  GENERAL MANAGER

3301 LAUREL CANYON ROAD
SANTA BARBARA CA  93105-2017

*Account Number : 70-42-001

Transactions
Effective Transacton Tran Confirm Authorized Amount
Date Date Type Number Caller
10-03-2006 10-02-2006 RW 1091975 KATHLEEN REES - 50,000.00
10-05-2006 10-05-2006 RwW 1092307 KATHLEEN REES - 70,000.00
10-13-2006 10-12-2006 _ QRD 1094278 SYSTEM 9,830.07
10-16-2006 10-13-2006 RwW 1095663 KATHIEEN REES - 10,600.00

Account Summary

Total Deposit : 9,830.07 Beginning Balance : - 935,868.37
Total Withdrawal : - 130,000.00 Ending Balance : 815,698.44

MEMO TO: Board of Difectors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Kathleen Rees, Secretary

SUBJECT: COMB INVESTMENT POLICY

The above statement of investment activity for the month of _D_Cj]]bﬂ;, 2006, complies with legal
requirements for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. I hereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all LATF investments of this agency for the period indicated.

gti/cretary / v . ITEM # L{L
' PAGE g




12:33 PM

11/14/06
Accrual Basis

Date Num

comb2

Payment of Claims
As of October 31, 2006

Name Memo Split Amount
1050 - GENERAL FUND

10/4/2006 15445 Bureau of Reclamation 5th Annual instaliment SOD Act 2200 - ACCO... -164,870.00
10/4/2006 15446 COMB - Revolving Fund Ocl 6 & 20, 2006 payrolis/iaxes 2200 - ACCO... -892,895.21
10/10/2006 15447 Acorn Landscape Managem...  Monthly mtce 2200 - ACCO... -239.70
10/10/2006 15448 ACWA Services Corporation ...  Qct EAP 2200 - ACCQ... ~47.46
10/10/2006 154493 Angslus Block Co., Inc. Block/pallet charge 2200 - ACCO... -697.46
10/10/2006 15450 Aqua-Flo Supply 2200 - ACCO... -91.64
10/10/2006 15451 AT&T Sep 27, 2006 statement 2200 - ACCO... -201.67
10/10/2006 15452 Ben Meadows Company Pelican case/packer contalners 2200 - ACCO... -184.27
10M10/20086 15453 Boyle Engineering Corp., 2200 - ACCOQ... -11,062.83
101102006 15454 Butera's Wireflester 2200 - ACCO... -37.45
10/10/2006 15455 CDW Government, !Inc. Powerware PO#8649 2200 - ACCO.,.. -289.20
10/10/2006 15456 Cedant Welby Hosting Web host & Parked domain Reg#249... 2200 - ACCO... -19.94
10/10/2006 15457 Central Machine & Welding Fabricate pipe spools 2200 - ACCO... -452.55
10/10/20086 15458 CI1O Salutions, Inc, Support 2200 - ACCO... -1,048.25
10/10/2006 15459 City of Santa Barbara-Centra...  Gloves/ear plugsfinsoles/plunger 2200 - ACCO... -154.44
10/10/2006 154860 City of SB-Refuse 2200 - ACCO... -155.74
10/10/2006 15461 Coaslal Copy Monthly mtce KM5035 7/4-8/3/06 2200 - ACCO... -86.88
10/10/2006 15462 COMB-Petty Cash Replenish petty cash 2200 - ACCO... -78.45
10/10/2006 15463 Conney Safety Products 2200 - ACCO... -208.42
10/10/2006 15464 County of Santa Barbara Hazardous waste disposal 2200 - ACCQ... -96.17
10/10/2006 15465 Cox Communicalions Business Intemet 9/18-10/17/06 2200 - ACCO.,.. -198.00
10/10/2006 15466 Culligan Water RO system QOct 220 - ACCO... -20.95
10/10/2006 15467 Cushman Contracting Corp. StegallfComfield PO#05-08-14 2200 - ACCO... -1,478.94
10/10/2006 15468 Draganchuk Alarm Systems Alarmylease-monitoring Oct-Dec 2006 2200 - ACCO... -82.50
10/10/2006 15469 ECHO Communications Answering service 2200 - ACCO... -59.30
10/10/2006 15470 Farwest Corrosion Control Co.  Densy! tape/denso paste PO#8658 2200 - ACCO... -978.35
10/10/2006 15471 Flowers & Assoclales, Inc. Aug chrgs Lauro Res Rd mitce impro... 2200 - ACCO... -3,476.05
10/10/2006 15472 GE Capital Copier lease Bllling ID#90133603185 2200 - ACCO... -427.77
10M0/2006 15473 Global Financlal Services Copler lease 10/10/08-1/10/07 2200 - ACCQ... -442 86
10/10/2006 15474 Home Depot Credit Services : 2200 - ACCO... -218.18
10/10/2006 15475 Interactive Pianning and Man... Facilltator services 8/4-10/3/06 2200 - ACCO... -6,352.50
1011012006 15476 Intuit, Inc. COMB Revolving Fund checks (Qty 2... 2200 - ACCO... -B85.65
10/10/2006 15477 J&C Services 2200 - ACCO... -500.00
10/10/2006 15478 Jeff Butterwarih Supply/bulldinstall laminate counter ... 2200 - ACCO... -2,500.00
10/10/2006 18479 Kirkwood Silk Screening Logo imprinting-T"shirts/shirts 2200 - ACCO... -314.52
10/10/2006 15480 McCormix Carp, Diesel fuel 2200 - ACCO... -110.40
10/10/2006 15481 McMaster-Cair Supply Co. 2200 - ACCO... -64.51
10/10/2006 15482 Milpas Rental 2200 - ACCO... -380.46
10110/2008 15483 Network Solutions CACHUMA-BOARD.ORG domain na... 2200 - ACCO... -49.98
10/10/2006 15484 Nextel Communications Cellutar 8/19-9/18/06 2200 - ACCOQ.., -318.868
10/10/2006 15485 Nordman, Cormany, Halr & ...  Gen Counsel Aug services 2200 - ACCO... -5,200.00
10/10/2006 15486 Orchard Supply Hardware 2200 - ACCO... -286.18
10/10/2006 15487 PAPA 2200 - ACCQ... -325.00
10/10/2006 15488 Paychex, Inc. 9/8 & 22/06 payrolls/taxes 2200 - ACCO... ~204.12
10/10/2006 15489 Permacalor, Inc. 2200 - ACCO... -1,841.58
10/10/2006 15480 PG&E 2200 - ACCO... -206.19
10/10/2006 15491 Pitney Bowes, Inc. Postage meter tapes 2200 - ACCO... -82.93
10/10/2006 15492 Praxair Disfribution Cylinder rental 2200 - ACCO... -35.87
10/10/2006 15493 Republic Elevator Scheduled mice 2200 - ACCO... -220.69
10/10/2006 15494 Reserve Account Postage reflll 2200 - ACCO... -400.00
10/10/2006 15485 Safety-Kleen Systems, Inc. Regular service 2200 - ACCO.., -124.15
10/10/2006 15496 Santa Barbara Concrete Cult...  Concrete plpe core 2200 - ACCOQO... -250.00
101072006 15497 Southern Callfornia Edison Maln ofc/outlying stations 2200 - ACCO... -1,402.85
10/10/2006 15498 Specialty Tool, LTD Misc balts for rehab riser 2200 - ACCO... -65.30
10/10/2006 15499 State Compensation Insuran...  Payroll report-Sep 2006 2200 - ACCQ... -2,758.41
10/10/2006 15500 The Gas Company Gas-main office 2200 - ACCO... -2.24
10/10/2006 1554 The Wharf 2200 - ACCO... -222.49
10/10/2006 15502 Tri-Countles Training Semin...  Drinking Water Pimary Inst. & Basic ... 2200 - ACCO... -180.00
10/10/2006 15503 Underground Service Alert 59 new tickets 2200 - ACCO... -54.40
10/10/2006 15504 Verizon Wireless Celiular 2200 - ACCO... -182.66
10/10/2006 15505 Platinum Plus For Business JG-meals/hotel 2200 - ACCO... -521.76
10/10/2006 15506 Platinum Plus For Business 2200 - ACCO... -1,351.35
10/10/2006 15507 Platinum Plus For Business 2200 - ACCO... -511.30
16/10/2006 158508 C. Charies Evans 9/25 Reg mig 2200 - ACCO... -132.45
10/10/2006 15509 Coastal Copy Maonthly mice KM5035 8/4-9/3/06 2200 - ACCOQ... -119.65
10/10/2006 15510 Cushman Coniracting Corp. Oriega Reservolr equipment pad 2200 - ACCO... -1,388.90
10/10/2006 15511 Das Williams 9125 Reg mig 2200 - ACCO... -131.69
10/18/2006 15912 Ferguson Waterworks Cust#8590 PO#BG47 2200 - ACCO... -1,950.69

ITEM # Ll C Page 1

PAGE

}




12:33 PM

1114106
Accrual Basis

comb2

Payment of Claims
As of October 31, 2006

Date Num Name Memo Split Amount
10/10/2006 15513 Fleet Fueling Fuelffuel cards 2200 - ACCO... -1,607.71
10/10/2006 15514 MarBorg Industries 2200 - ACCO... -163.04
10/10/2006 15515 Matt Loudon 5/25 Reg mig 2200 - ACCO... -153.24
10/10/2008 15516 MGR industrial Supply 2200 - ACCQ... -113.03
10/10/20086 15517 Nerdman, Cormany, Halr & ... Gen Counsel Sep services 2200 - ACCQ... -6,515.00
10/10/2006 15518 Robert Lieberknecht 9/25 Reg mig 2200 - ACCO... ~140.59
10/10/2006 15519 Robert Puddicombe 9/25 Reg mig 2200 - ACCO... -136.90
10/10/2006 15520 Santa Barbara Sand & Top 5... Haul rock 2200 - ACCO... -396.37
10/10/2006 ‘15521 Southern California Edison Glen Anne gate 2200 - ACCO... -31.03
10/10/2006 15522 Standard Autornation & Cont...  WW Basic Cal-license w/server/Activ... 2200 - ACCO... -1,236.35
10/10/2006 15523 Ventura Hydraulic & Machine...  Bfade for nut splhitter 2200 - ACCO... -343.20
10/13/2006 15524 Caterplllar Financial Services... Backhoe lease Contract #001-02586... 2200 - ACCO... -1,284.06
10/13/2006 15525 MacFarlane Faletti & Co, LLP  Client #20008 2200 - ACCO... -175.00
10/13/2006 15526 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. 2200 - ACCO... -606.24
10/13/2006 18527 Prudential Overall Supply 2200 - ACCO... -360.05
10/13/2006 15528 Smarden-Hatcher Co. Blades for pipe cutier 2200 - ACCO... -31.1
10/13/2006 15529 Staples Credit Plan Ofc supplies 2200 - ACCO... -1,080.46
10/13/2006 15530 Verizon Califarnia 2200 - ACCO... -332.33
10/15/2006 15531 ACWA Services Corp. {ASG) Cov period 11/1-121/06 2200 - ACCO... -8,843.64
10/19/2006 15532 Bartlett, Pringle & Wolf, LLP Chent #A6145.1100 2200 - ACCOQ... -5,252.00
10/18/2006 15533 Gary A. Smith, CPA Accl/Consult services COMB Simt1... 2200 - ACCO... -500.00
10/19/2006 15534 Verzon Callfornia SCADA 2200 - ACCO... -509.89
10/20/2006 15535 Cox Communications Business Intemet 10/18-11/17/06 2200 - ACCO... -199.00
10/23/2006 15536 Adele Capponl Relmb-coffee maker for office 2200 - ACCO... -118,51
10/27/2006 15539 Squidly's Car Wash Vehicle wash/mtce 2200 - ACCO... -95.00

Total 1050 - GENERAL FUND -341,515.14
TOTAL

-341,515.14

ITEM #__4C ooz
PAGE 2




12:33 PM comb2
11114/06 Payment of Claims-Renewal Fund
Accrual Basis October 2006
) Date Num Name_ i Memo o Split Ampg_r1_t_
COct 06
10/2/2006 Bank charge Wire fransfer fee 2580 - D... -10.00
10/16/20068 1022 Cachuma Conservation Rel... Funds transfer to CCRB ... 2590 - D... —238_,_453;(}9
Oct 06 -238,463.00
ITEM #_.__.LIL_.._F_’age 1

PAGE

2




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

MEMORANDUM
DATE: November 20, 2006
TO: Members of the Board of Directors
FROM: Kate Rees, Interim General Manager
RE: REPORT FROM THE AUDITOR FOR FISCAL YEAR 2006 AND 2005
Recommendation:
1. That the Board of Directors accept the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2006 and the Independent Auditor's Report.

2. That the Board of Directors authorize a surplus of funds in the amount $572,920 be
constructively applied toward the 3" Quarter COMB assessment for FY 2006-07 or
toward a special project at the Board'’s discretion.

Discussion:

Enclosed in your board package are copies of the Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year
ending June 30, 2006 and the Independent Auditors’ Report prepared by COMB'’s Auditor
Bartlett, Pringle & Wolf, LLP.

| am pleased to report that the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report for fiscal year 2005-
2006 has been completed within the normal 180 day timeframe and is presented here for your
consideration. Danna McGrew and Stacey Hansen were greatly assisted in the preparation of
the FY 2005-2006 Audit by Administrative Manager, Janet Gingras, and Administrative
Assistant, Adelle Capponi.

The auditor has identified a surplus of $572,920 from assessments collected from the Member
Units but not used for last year activities. | would recommend that the Board authorize these
funds to be constructively applied toward the 3™ quarter COMB assessment for FY 2006-07 or
toward a special project at the Board's discretion.

COMB’s Finance Committee and | have reviewed the Management Discussion and Analysis,
the Financial Statements, Notes o the Financial Statements, and the Independent Auditor's
Report, and found everything to be acceptable. Ms. McGrew has advised us that her firm did
not identify any management concerns or reportable conditions in conducting the audit.

The substantive portions of the FY 2005-2006 Audit and the Notes to the Financial Statements
will be brought fo your attention during discussion on this item at the Board meeting.

kr/comb admin/board memoll‘l%E‘M_a#lit 112006 5
PAGE l




DRAFT

November 6, 2006

To the Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Cachuma
Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) for the year ended June 30, 2006, we
considered COMB’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
COMB’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of COMB’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider
to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control deoes not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects
COMB?’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a
remote likelihood that a misstatement of the COMB’s financial statements that is more
than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the COMB’s internal control.
We consider the following deficiencies to be significant deficiencies in internal control:

Journal Entry Approval

During our audit we noted that journal entries were not reviewed for accuracy and
propriety by someone other than the preparer. To prevent possible misstatement all
entries should be reviewed and approved to ensure accurate recording and reporting of
financial information. It is suggested that the Administrative Manager review and
approve all journal entries prepared by the Administrative Assistant and that the
General Manager review and approve all journal entries prepared by the Administrative
Manager.

Conclusion

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board,
management, and others within COMB, and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties. This letter does not affect our report

ITEM #
PAGE

5
<




Board of Directors

Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board
November 6, 2006

Page 2

dated November 6, 2006 on the financial statements of the Cachuma Operation and
Maintenance Board.

We will review the status of the comments during our next audit engagement. We
would be pleased to discuss these matters in further detail at your convenience, to
perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the
recommendations.

We would like to express our appreciation of the cooperation extended to us by the
COMB'’s staff during the course of our audit work. If you have any questions regarding
the above issue, do not hesitate to call.

Very truly yours,

BARTLETT, PRINGLE & WOLF, LLP
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

ITEM #__ 5

PAGE 3




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2006 and 2005

fi % BARTLETT. PRINGLE & WOLF. LLP
BPW < CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

ITEM #
PAGE

DRAFT

5
¥




DRAFT
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Independent AUItOTS” REPOTT .....c.vuieeieiermirereteieeeceecerssese e e eessessesseses s sees s esss e s seeees 1-2
Management’s Discussion and AELYSIS ....o.iueveecueeeisiecve e eeeeeeseeeseseee s e eeee e 3-10
Statement OF NEE ASSEIS ....voviueiriieireeeees s e esen s s e e e e s s s e 11-12
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net ASSEIS cvveovuvveveeeeeoeeoeoeosoeeeeee oo 13
Statement 0f Cash FIOWS ......cccvrummuiurmeeeieiieseceoseeeesee e veeeeeessess s eeseees s et esenn 14-15
Notes 10 Financial StatemEDIS........c.vveervrururieiiimee et eeseeeee e st se s eeens 16 - 28

Supplemental Information:

Supplemental Schedule of Operation and Maintenance, General and Administrative and
Other MaIntenance EXPEIISE ....vvueeeuerireresisesie e oo veeeeeseseeese e esssss s e ee s esees 29

Supplemental Schedule of Operation and Maintenance, General and Administrative, Other
Maintenance Expense and Other Budgeted Expenses Actual to Budget.........ccvvueunnnee.. 30

ITEM #__ 5

PAGE S




DRAFT

November 6, 2006

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of Cachuma Operation and
Maintenance Board (“COMB™) as of June 30, 2006 and the related statements of
revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of COMB’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
The financial statements of COMB for the year ended June 30, 2005 were audited by
other auditors whose report, dated November 21, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion
on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for
California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the finaneial position of the COMB at June 30, 2006, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as well as accounting systems
prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special
districts.

Management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 10 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. This supplementary information is the
responsibility of COMB’s management. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not
audit such information and we do not express an opinion on it.

-1-

ITEM #__S

PAGE __ &




DRAFT

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The additional information included in the supplemental
schedules on pages 29 and 30 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. This additional information is the
responsibility of COMB’s management. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

ITEM #___S

PAGE 7




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

This section presents management’s analysis of the financial condition and activities of the Cachuma
Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. This
information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the additional
information included herewith.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMB operates as a proprietary fund-type. All proprictary fund-types are accounted for on a flow
of economic resources measurement focus. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets and where
appropriate, total net assets (i.e., fund equity) are segregated into invested in capital and unrestricted
net assets. Proprietary fund-type operating statemenis present increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net asseits.

All proprietary fund-types utilize the accrual basis of accounting, Under this method, revenues are
recognized when earned, regardless of when received, and expenses are recognized at the time the
related liabilities are incurred, regardless of when paid.

Summary of Organization and Business

COMB is a public entity duly organized and existing in accordance with enabling legislation of the
State of California: Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1, of the Government Code (Section 6500 et seq.),
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act. COMB was officially established as a joint powers agency as of
January 1, 1957 by and among six public agencies (Member Units) in Santa Barbara County, two of
which have subsequently reorganized (merged). On May 23, 1996 the Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement (Agreement) for COMB was amended and restated. The Member Units entered into the
Agreement to exercise their common power to provide for the rights to, the facilities of, and the
operation, maintenance and use of the United States, Depariment of the Interior, Bureau of
Reclamation project known as the Cachuma Project, including storage, treatment, transport and
appurtenant facilities, and all necessary tangible and intangible property and rights. In particular, the
Member Units expressed their desire to create COMB for the purpose of praviding authority for the
financing of “costs” for the capture, development, treatment, storage, transport and delivery of
water; and for repayment of notes, bonds, loans, warrants, and revenue bonds as may be issued to
finance facilities, operations or services.

COMB currently has a staff of 14 full time employees. Of these, four are employed in an
administrative capacity and ten are in field operations.

ITEM #___ 5

-3. PAGE g




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMB is presently composed of five Member Units, all of which are public agencies: the
Carpinteria Valley Water District, the Goleta Water District, the Montecito Water District, the Santa
Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement District No. 1, and the City of Santa Barbara.

(A founding Member Unit of COMB, the Summerland Water District, reorganized with the
Montecito Water District, with Montecito Water District as the successor agency. Another founding
Member Unit of COMB, the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, assigned its Member
Unit water contract to the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement District No.

1)

Under the Agreement, each of the five Member Units appoints a representative to the COMB Board
of Directors. The following table shows each Member Unit’s share of the Cachuma Project yield
(water entitlement) and the number of votes each has on the Board of Directors:

Member Unit Entitlement Percentage Board Representation
Carpinteria Valley WD 10.94 % I vote
Goleta Water District 36.25% 2 votes
Montecito Water District 10.31 % 1 vote
Santa Ynez RWCD ID No. 1 10.31 % 1 vote
City of Santa Barbara 32.19% 2 votes
Total 100.00% 7 votes

Votes representing a majority of the number of votes authorized under the Agreement are required
for the approval of any decision, other than adjournment, which requires action of the Board of
Directors. Also, the affirmative vote of at least three representatives to the Board of Directors is
necessary for the approval of such a decision. The unanimous consent of the representatives of all
the Member Units is required for COMB to take action on the following matters:

Approval of a Cachuma Project Master Contract amendment, renewal or extension;

A matter involving water rights of any party;

Acquisition of significant facilities from the United States;

Issnance of bonds, loans or other forms of indebiedness in excess of one million
($1,000,000) dollars.

o=

A decision of COMB authorizing a capital expenditure in excess of one miilion dollars or incurring
an indebtedness or obligation in excess of one million dollars is not effective unless it has been
ratified by a resclution approved by all of the Member Units.

ITEM #
-4- PAGE

SENCE




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D R.AFT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operating Assessments

Current operations of COMB are funded by assessment of the Member Units, with the assessments
based on the Member Units’ Cachuma Project entitlement percentages. All five Member Units fund
the general and administrative portion of the annual budget as well as the cost of special projects
(capital improvements, rehabilitation & betterment, maintenance & modifications, etc.) for Bradbury
Dam and Lake Cachuma, the main Cachuma Project storage facility, located on the Santa Ynez
River in northern Santa Barbara County.

Four of the Member Units, not including Santa Ynez RWCD ID No. 1, fund the operation and
maintenance portion of the annual budget as well as the cost of special projects for other Cachuma
Project storage and conveyance facilities that serve the South Coast of Santa Barbara County. These
facilities include the Tecolote Tunnel, the South Coast Conduit (SCC), and four dams and reservoirs
(Glen Anne, Lauro, Ortega and Carpinteria). During the year ended June 30, 2006 COMB
conducted and/or completed a number of special studies and projects totaling over $1.1 million using
revenue provided by these assessments. These included SCC improvement plans and life
expectancy studies; and rehabilitation and betterment of control stations, valves and structures.

COMB Committees

COMB has five committees: Capital Improvements, Finance, Operations, Management and Public
Relations. Each committee is composed of two Board members and one alternate Board member.
Appointments to the committees are made by the President of the Board. The committees meet with
staff on an as-needed basis and review and recommend actions to the Board of Directors with regard
to capital improvements, finance and other matters.

ITEM #__ 5

-5- PAGE __ [0




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following table shows a condensed version of COMB’s statement of net assets with
corresponding analysis regarding significant variations.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets
Year Ended Variance
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005 Dollars Percent

Current Assets . b 967,099 h) 521,226 $ 4453873 85.5%
Restricted Assets 38,364 396,141 (357,777) -90.3%
Property, Plant & Equipment 242,755 279,086 (36,331) -13.0%
Other Assets 6,481,449 5,561,890 919,559 16.5%
Total Assets $  7,729.667 3 6,758,343 3 971,324 14.4%
Current Liabilities £ 447,146 b 705,620 $ (258,474) -36.6%
Long-Term Liabilities 6,496,657 5,590,496 906,161 16.2%
Total Liabilities 6,943,803 6,296,116 647,687 10.3%
Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets 212,944 235,240 (22,296) -9.5%
Unrestricted 572,920 226,987 345,933 152.4%
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $  7.720.667 $ 6,758,343 $ 971,324 14.4%

Statement of Net Assets Analvsis

s Total assets as of June 30, 2006 are $7.73 million, or $0.97 million more than the June 30,
2005 amount; the changes are discussed below.

o Current assets are approximately $0.45 million more than the prior year amount primarily
due to an increase in the carrying amount of cash in the Local Area Investment Fund.

e Restricted assets are 90.3% less than the prior year due to a decrease in the amount of
Renewal Fund / Trust Fund bank accounts.

e The value of property, plant and equipment is slightly less than the prior year amount due to
depreciation of COMB'’s fixed assets.

ITEM #__ D5

PAGE ___I{ .



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD DRAFT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Assets Analysis (Continued)

¢ Other assets are $0.92 million more than the prior year amount due to the increase in long
term assessments receivable affiliated with the Bradbury and Lauro Dam SOD Act
repayment contracts.

¢ Current liabilities are $0.26 million less than the prior year amount, primarily due to a
decrease the amount of restricted assets.

¢ Longterm liabilities are $0.90 million more than the prior year amount due to the increase in
long term liabilities affiliated with the Bradbury and Lauro Dam SOD Act repayment
contracts.

ITEM #
-7- PAGE

S
{ o




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

DRAFT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table shows a condensed version of COMB’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets, with corresponding analysis regarding significant variances.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended Variance
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2003 Dollars Percent

Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Operating Revenues $ 3,030,790 $ 2,868,103 $ 162,687 5.7%
Operating Expenses,

excluding Depreciation Expense (2,504,959 (2,799,893) 204,934 -10.5%
Depreciation (101,330) {109,366) 8,036 -7.3%
Operating Income (Deficit) 424 501 (41,156) 465,657 -1131.4%
Non-operating Revenues 21,281 20,873 408 2.0%
Non-operating Expenses (122,145) (128,782) 6,637 -5.2%
Change in Net Assets $ 323,637 $ (149,065 3 7,045 -4.7%
Statement Analvsis

o Operaiing Revenues as of June 30, 2006 are about $0.16 million more than the prior year
amount. This increase is primarily due to larger budget assessments and receipt of state

disaster relief funds.

» Operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization expense is about $0.29 million
lower than the prior year amount due primarily to a decrease in litigation costs.

e Non-Operating income was consistent with prior year and consisted of investment income

and gains on disposal of assets.

» Non-Operating expenses were consistent with the prior year and consisted primarily of the
interest expense relating to the SOD Act contract payable interest.

ITEM # 5
PAGE {2




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Assets
The following table provides a summary of COMB’s capital assets and changes from the prior year.

Capital Assets
Year Ended Variance
June 30,2006  June 30,2005  Dollars Percent
Vehicles $ 241944 § 231,648 10,296 4.4%
Office Furniture and Equipment 102,547 113,041 (10,494) -9.3%
Field Equipment 305,473 284,120 21,353 7.5%
Mobile Offices Used for Facilities 97,803 97,803 - 0.0%
Resurfacing 22,350 22,350 - 0.0%
Total Capital Assets 770,117 748,962 21,155 2.8%
Accumulated Depreciation (527,362) (469,876) (57,486) 12.2%
Net Capital Assets § 242755 § 279,086 5 (36,331) -13.0%

Debt Administration

COMB and the Cachuma Project Authority (CPA) merged in 1996, with COMB as the successor
agency. With this merger, COMB assumed responsibility for the oversight and payment of the Series
1993 CPA revenue bonds. However, the bonds are not recorded on the books of COMB because,
under Joint Participation Agreements between COMB and three of the Member Units, these Member
Units are obligated to make the bond principal and interest paymenis on behalf of COMB. The
Series 1993 bonds were refinanced by COMB in the first quarter of FY 2004/05.

COMB obtained $220,000 in financing in FY 2003/04 on behalf of one of its Member Units, the
Carpinteria Valley Water District (District). This was for the District’s portion of a special project
assessment to fund the Bradbury Dam radial gates project. Repayment of the loan principal and
interest associated with this financing is solely the responsibility of the District.

Under the terms and conditions of a repayment contract executed in 2002, COMB is responsible for
payment to the United States of fifteen percent (15%) of the total amount of Safety of Dams (SOD)
Act funds expended by the United States for structural stability and related work at Bradbury Dam.
The debt total under the contract as executed is approximately $6,791,000 plus interest and is to be
repaid by annual payments over a 50-year period. COMB assesses the Member Units annually to
collect the revenue for the payment due that year, with the assessments based on the Member Units’
Cachuma Project entitlement percentages.

Work activities related to the completion of the Bradbury SOD Act rehabilitation produced

ITEM #___5

-9- PAGE L¥




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD DR AFT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

additional costs which increased the original obligation by approximately $2,438,683 as of June 30,
2006. Fifteen percent of that total equals $365,803 which has been reflected in the long term
liability obligation.

The funds expended from Reclamation through June 30, 2006 regarding the Lauro Dam
rehabilitation project totaled approximately $4,174,825. The fifteen percent obligation plus interest
during construction equates to approximately $660,000 for the Lauro SOD Act repayment debt
which appears in the long term liability account.

Budget and Actual Results

The following narrative discussion provides information on COMB’s budget and actual results for
the year ended June 30, 2006. A table in the Supplemental Information section at the end of this
report provides a numerical summary of COMB’s budget and actual results for the year.

» Operating assessments from the Member Units include amounts for operating expenses and
interest payments for the loan referenced above under Debt Administration.

* DBudgeted operating assessments exclude interest and other credits which are applied against
the current year invoices as the credits are received by COMB.

¢ Interest and other credits applied against operating reimbursements include interest income
credits on all cash balances and the FY 2005/06 year-end credits payable to the Member
Units for unexpended operating assessments.

» Operation and Maintenance Expense stayed below the overall O&M budget, although
vehicle maintenance and certain other expenses were slightly more than anticipated.

e General and Administrative Expense stayed within the overall G&A budget, even though
there was a greater than expected miscellaneous costs.

¢ Other Maintenance Expense (for Special Projects) also stayed within the overall budget
during the year, while a great deal of beneficial work was accomplished by COMB staff and
COMB contractors and consultants. This included in particular Special Projects such as
SCC improvement plans, designs and structure rehabilitation and betterment work on
Cachuma Project facilities on the Santa Barbara County South Coast.

ITEM #___ 8
_10- PAGE ___ /S




DRAFT

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2006 and 2005
ASSETS
2006 2005
Current Assets
Cash (Note 3) § 40,773 5 56,927
Investments (Note 3) 739,854 306,500
Receivable from related entity (Note 13) 63,368 28,729
Receivable - FEMA/OES - 16,399
Accrued interest receivable - 2,485
Prepaid insurance 11,559 9,108
Deposits 5,043 -
Current portion of long-term accounts receivable (Note 5) 56,100 53,937
Current portion of SOD Act assessments receivable (Note 6) 49,902 47,141
Total current assets 067,009 521,226
Restricted Cash (Note 4) 38,364 396,141
Capital Assets (Note 7)
Vehicles 241,944 231,648
Office furniture and equipment 102,547 113,041
Field equipment 305,473 284,120
Mobile offices used for facilities 97,803 97,803
Resurfacing 22,350 22,350
Subtotal 770,117 748,962
Less: accumulated depreciation (527,362) (469,876)
Capital assets, net 242,755 279,086
Other Assets
Long-term accounts receivable (Note 5) 58,300 114,647
Long-term assessments receivable SOD Act (Note 6) 6,423,143 5,447,243
Total other assets 0,481,449 5,561,890
Total assets 3 7,728,667 S 6,758,343
See accompanying notes ITE M # 5

-1l -

PAGE 2




DRAFT

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 36, 2006 and 2005

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2006 2005
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable b 226,343 $ 86,093
Accrued wages 18 27,682
Accrued vacation and sick leave benefits 61,816 79,386
Payable to related entity (Note 4) 38,364 396,141
Current portion of capital lease (Note 8) 14,603 15,240
Current portion of note payable (Note 9) 56,100 53,937
Current portion of SOD Act contract payable (Note &) 49,902 47,141
Total current liabilities 447,146 705,620
Long-Term Liabilities
Capital lease, net of current partion (Note 8) 15,208 28,606
Note payable, net of current portion (Note 9) 58,306 114,647
SOD Act contract payable, net of current portion (Note 6) 6,423,143 5,447,243
Total long-term liabilities 6,496,657 5,590,496
Total liabilities 6,943,803 6,296,116
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 14)
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 212,944 235,240
Unrestricted:
Designated to be constructively returned 572,920 226,987
Total net assgets b 785,864 8 462,227

See accompanying notes ET E M #_L_
"2 PAGE __{7




DRAFT

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

2006 2005
Operating Revenues
Operating assessments from member agencies 3 2,894,465 5 2,846,290
State disaster relief funds 131,998 16,399
Other revenues 4,327 5,414
Total operating revenues 3,030,790 2,868,103
Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance of Cachuma Project
Operation and maintenance 834,832 805,142
General and administrative 475,388 476,411
Litipation 58,748 173,928
Other maintenance 1,135,991 1,344,412
Depreciation 101,330 109,366
Total operating expenses 2,606,289 2,909,259
Net Operating Income (Loss) 424,501 (41,156)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 14,156 15,773
Interest expense (122,145 (128,782)
Gain on disposal of assets 7,125 5,100
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) {100,864) (107,909)
Change in Net Assets 323,637 (149,065
Total Net Assets, Beginning of Year 462,227 611,292
Total Net Assets, End of Year b 785,864 $ 462,227
ITEM #__ 5

See accompanying notes

-13- PAGE __ /¥




DRAFT

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

2006 2005
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from member agencies 2,995,784 8 2928376
Cash received from Office of Emergency Services 148,397 -
Cash received from other sources 4,327 5414
Cash payments to suppliers for operations (1,770,361) (2,620,410)
Cash payments to employees (682,215 {568,520)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 695,932 (255,140)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Increase {decrease) in restricted assets (357,777) {186,207)
(Increase) decrease in deposits held for related entity 357,777 186,207
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities - -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets (66,429) (95,444)
Proceeds from sale of assets 7,123 5,100
Payments on note payable (55,676) (59,861)
Payments on capital lease (19,714) (13,486)
Payments on SOD Act contract payable (162,109) (164,870)
Net cash flows used by capital and related financing activities (296,803) (328,561)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest received 16,641 16,302
Purchase of investments (2,153,924) (2,982,195)
Proceeds from redemptions of investments 1,722,000 3,543,000
Net cash flows provided (used) by investing activities {415,283) 577,107
Net Decrease in Cash (16,154) (6,594)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 56,927 63,521
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 40,773 3 56,927
See accompanying notes ITEM # 5

-14-

PAGE

(7




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

DRAFT

2006 2005
Reconciliation of net operating gain (loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities
Net operating income (loss) 3 424,501 5 (41,136)
Adjustments to reconeile operating gain (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 101,330 109,366
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Receivable from related entity (35,139) 3,272
Receivable from OES 16,399 {16,399)
Prepaid insurance (2,451) (212)
Deposits (5,043) -
Receivable from member unit 54,178 51,832
Cuwrrent portion of SOD Act assessment receivable 47,141 44,533
Accounts payable 140,250 (416,148)
Accrued wages (27,664) 6,311
Accrued vacation and sick leave benefts (17,570 8,875
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities b 695,932 5 (249,726)

See accompanying notes
-15-

ITEM #__ 5
PAGE __20



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 -

Note 2 -

Organization

The Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) is a joint powers agency organized to
operate and maintain the water delivery system of the Cachuma Project located in Santa Barbara
County. COMB’s member agencies (Member Units) consist of five water purveyors as follows:
Carpinteria Valley Water District, City of Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District, Montecito Water
District, and Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement District No. 1.

The Member Units entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement to exercise their common
power to provide for the rights to, the facilities of, and the operation, maintenance and use of the
United States, Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation project known as the Cachuma
Project, including storage, treatment, transport and appurtenant facilities, and all necessary tangible
and intangible property rights.

Summarvy of Significant Accounting Policies

A) Basis of Accounting

This report has been prepared in conformance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted
in the United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). Additionally, COMB applies all Financial Accounting Standards Board
statements and interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

B) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes demand deposits and money market
accounts, but does not include restricted cash or funds invested in the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LATF).

C) Capital Assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is generally 5 years. Title to the
assets of the Cachuma Project is with the United States of America; the assets are not recorded
as assets of COMB. Costs relating to capital improvements, rehabilitation, betterment,
maintenance and modifications are therefore reported as expenditures when incurred by
COMB.

D) Accrued Vacation and Sick Pay

Employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment.
With minor exceptions, compensated absences vest and accumulate and are accrued when they
are earned.

ITEM #__ >

6. PAGE __ R (




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RA FT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 -

Note 3 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

E) Unspent Operating Assessments

The operating assessments represent amounts received from COMB’s Member Units to fund
current operations. To the exient that revenues exceed expenses in a given year, they are
constructively returned to the Member Units in subsequent years. Thus, the current year’s
unrestricted net assets will be used to reduce operating assessments required from the Member
Units in future periods.

F) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. COMB’s principal areas that include
estimates are the liabilities and related receivables for Safety of Dams Act construction in
process and the lives of capitalized assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Investments

Cash

At June 30, 2006 and 2005 the carrying amounts of cash in banks were $40,373 and $56,927 and
the corresponding bank balances were $88,190 and $207,741, respectively. Ofthe bank balances at
June 30, 2006 and 2005, $88,190 and $100,000, respectively, were covered by federal depository
msurance and $107,741 for 2005 were secured with collateral. The California Government Code
requires all California financial institutions to secure a local government agency’s deposits by
pledging government securities as collateral. The market value of pledged securities must equal
110% of an agency’s deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure agency
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the agency’s total
deposits. All COMB cash held by a financial institution is, therefore, entirely insured and
collateralized.

Investments

Under the provisions of COMB’s investment policy, the agency may invest in state or national
banks, state or federal saving and loan associations, the State of California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LATF), or may invest as provided in the California Government Code.

In accordance with governmental accounting standards, investments are categorized by level of
credit risk assumed at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or
for which the securities are held by COMB or its agency in COMB’s name. Category 2 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counter party’s trust
department or agent in COMB’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by the counter party, by its trust department or agency
but not in COMB’s name. All of COMB’s investments are non-categorized at June 30, 2006 and
2005.

ITEM #___>
-17- PAGE ___=%




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D R AFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 -

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Investments {Continued)

Short-term investments consist of deposits with the LATF, a fund established by the State of
California to assist local agencies in the achievement of maximum earnings. The interest rate on
the LAIF deposit varies. For the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, the average earnings rate was
approximately 4% and 2.256%, respectively. The amounts on deposit as of June 30, 2006 and 20053
were $739,854 and $306,500, respectively.

Investment Risk

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the Board was exposed to the
following investment risks at the year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will
not fulfill its obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are
designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the District was not significantly
exposed to credit risk.

At June 30, 2006, COMB’s investments, other than those which are obligations of or
guaranteed by the U.S. Government, are rated as to credit quality as follows:

Investment S&P Rating
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Not rated

Custodial Credit Risk— Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by
depository insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in COMB’s name.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not
registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the
counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in COMB’s name.

At year end, COMB was not exposed to custodial credit risk.
Concentration of Credit Risk — This risk is the risk of loss atiributed to the magnitude of a
government’s investment in a single issuer. At year end, COMB was not exposed to

goncentration of credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk — This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. At year end, COMB was not exposed to interest rate risk.

Foreign Currency Risk — This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. At year end, COMB was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

TEM #__ O
-18- PAGE __ 23




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4 -

Note 5 -

Restricted Cash

The Cachuma Project Renewal Fund (Renewal Fund) and Cachuma Project Trust Fund (Trust
Fund) are two separate funds that have been established through contracts with the U.S. Bureau of
Reclamation (Reclamation).

The Trust Fund is a requirement of the Warren Act contract that the Central Coast Water Authority
(CCWA) negotiated with Reclamation for the use of the Cachuma Project for transport of State
Water Project (SWP) water through Cachuma Project facilities. The memorandum of
understanding (MOU) creating the Trust Fund established a two person Fund Committee and an
Advisory Committee. One member of the Fund Committee is appointed by the Member Units
through COMB or CCRB. The other member of the Fund Committee is appointed by Santa
Barbara County Board of Supervisors from the County Water Agency.

The Renewal Fund is a requirement of the Cachuma Project Renewal Master Contract for water
service from the Cachuma Project to the five Cachuma Project Member Units. The Cachuma
Project Renewal Master Contract is mostly silent on the process for managing the Renewal Fund,
other than stating that the Fund Committee must agree on its use.

Both the Trust Fund and the Renewal Fund require annual and five-year plans. Reclamation and
the Cachuma Project Member Units agreed to use the committee process for both funds and to have
common annual and five-year plans. To date the annual and five-year plans have called for the
funds to be used for environmental studies and projects related to the Cachuma Project water rights
hearings before the State Water Resources Control Board. COMB manages both the Trust Fund
and the Renewal Fund accounts.

Summary of restricted cash as of June 30:

2006 2005
Trust Fund 3 33320 % 390,757
Renewal Fund 5,044 5,384
Total Resiricted Cash s 38,364 & 396,141

Accounts Receivable

In 2004 COMB obtained financing on behalf of Carpinteria Valley Water District for a portion of
the special project assessment relating to the Bradbury Dam radial gates project. Carpinteria Valley
Water District is solely responsible for the repayment of the loan principal and interest associated
with the financial arrangement. See Note 9 for the terms and payment schedule of the loan.
Management deems the accounts receivable to be fully collectable.

ITEM #__ S
-19- PAGE __ <Y




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6 -

SOD Act Assessments Receivable and Contract Payable

Bradbury Dam

On July 1, 2002, COMB executed a repayment contract with U.S. Bureau of Reclamation in the
Department of Interior of the United States (Reclamation). Under the terms of the agreement and in
accordance with the United States Safety of Dams (SOD) Act, COMB will reimburse Reclamation
for fifteen percent (15%) of the total amount of SOD Act funds expended by Reclamation to
preserve the structural integrity of Bradbury Dam and related Cachuma Project facilities.

COMB entered into a repayment contract with Reclamation when the project was deemed to be
substantially complete. The repayment contract, as executed, calls for a repayment of 15% of a
total cost of $45,276,008 or approximately $6,791,000 plus interest, as appropriate, over a 50-year
period. The repayment obligation has been allocated fifty-one and three tenths percent (51.3%) to
irrigation uses (Irrigation Allocation) or $3,483,989, and forty eight and seven tenths percent
(48.7%) to municipal and industrial (M&I) uses (M&I Allocation) or $3,307,412. The Irrigation
allocation bears no interest and repayment commences in fiscal year end 2017. The M&I
Allocation balance due during the construction period accrued interest in the amount of $325,477.
During construction COMB made advances in the amount of $1,496,148 that were applied against
the M&I Allocation amounts. Accounting for advances made by COMB during construction, the
balance due under the M&I Allocation contract was $2,136,741.

COMB will asses the Member Units annually amounts equal to the obligation due Reclamation.
The annual payment requirements at June 30, 2006 to retire the contract as of June 30, 2052,
including interest payments at 5.856%, are presented in the following table. This table does not
include adjustments that will be made to the Bradbury Dam repayment contract due to additional
incurred costs or for payments that will be required under the Lauro Dam repayment contract.

M&I Allocation brrigation
Principal Interest Allocation Total

2007 $ 49,902 $ 114,968 § - 8 164,870
2008 52,824 112,046 - 164,870
2009 55,917 108,953 - 164,870
2010 59,192 105,678 - 164,870
2011 62,658 102,212 - 164,870
2012-2016 372,821 451,529 - 824,350
2017-2021 495,539 328,811 483,887 1,308,237
2022-2026 658,651 165,699 483,887 1,308,237
2027-2031 155,750 9,120 483,887 648,757
2032-2036 - - 483,887 483,887
2037-2041 - - 483,887 483,887
2042-2046 - - 483,887 483,887
2047-2051 - - 483 887 483,887
2052 - - 96,780 96,780

3 1,963,254 § 1,499,016 3§ 3,483,989 § 6,946,259

ITEM #__ 5
-20- PAGE __ <5




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD DRAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6 -

SOD Act Assessments Receivable and Contract Payable (Continued)

The interest expense for the SOD Act contract payable was $114,968 and $120,337 for the year
ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The total cost of the Bradbury Dam SOD Act project is to be reevaluated and the repayment
agreement amended as necessary by Reclamation and COMB when all phases of the work are
completed. Total project costs as of June 30, 2006 were $47,714,691, 82,438,683 higher than the
total cost authorized under the repayment contract. It is management’s opinion that COMB willbe
responsible for reimbursing Reclamation 15% of the total construction costs in excess of the costs
per the original repayment contract. An additional liability of $365,802 was recorded at June 30,
2006 representing 15% of the total construction costs incurred to date in excess of $45,276,008.
This is an estimate based on management’s best judgment which may be adjusted as more current
information becomes available.

Reclamation can also reevaluate the ability of COMB’s Member Units to repay the Irrigation
Allocation every five years, commencing in fiscal year end 2008. No adjustment has been made to
the Irrigation Allocation balance to reflect a discount due to the non-interest bearing feature of the
contract.

Lauro Dam

Reclamation and COMB have prepared a repayment agreement for execution for the Lauro Dam
SOD Act modification project. Lauro Dam is a Cachuma Project facility on the Santa Barbara
county South Coast. The modification project is to improve the dam’s seismic stability. When the
Lauro Dam SOD Act modification project is completed, COMB and its Member Units will be
responsible for reimbursement of 15% of the total modification costs incurred by reclamation and
for interest during construction. The maximum expected total cost of the modifications is
$17,314,125. The primary contract for construction of the modification project was awarded by
Reclamation in September 2005 and the work was substantially completed by September 2006.

The Lauro Dam SOD Act repayment agreement will have a 50-year term and other terms and
conditions similar to the Bradbury Dam SOD Act repayment agreement. The first payment of the
Lauro Dam repayment obligation is expected to be made on October 1, 2008. As of June 30, 2006,
Reclamation has expended $4,174,825 on the Lauro Dam SOD Act modification project and the
15% repayment obligation as of the date was $626,224. A liability of $660,000 is recorded at June
30, 2006 for repayment of COMB’s portion of the project cost to date at plus estimated interest
during construction. This is an estimate based on management’s best judgment which may be
adjusted as more current information becomes available.

Management deems the assessments receivable related to the Bradbury and Lauro Dams SOD Act
projects to be fully collectable,

TEM #___O

-21- PAGE __<F




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6 - SOD Act Assessments Receivable and Coniract Payable (Continued)
Bradbury Dam repayment contract:
M&I principal 3 1,963,254
Irrigation principal 3,483,980
Total Bradbury Dam repayment contract obligation
excluding interest 5,447,243
Bradbury Dam liability for 15% of additional costs
incurred over repayment contract 365,802
Lauro Dam liability for 15% of construction costs 660,000
Total SOD Act liability | 6,473,045
Less current portion (49,902)
Long-term portion of SOD Act liability 3 6,423,143
Note 7-  Capital Assets
The following is a summary of capital assets which include property, plant and equipment at June
30, 2006 and 2005.
Beginning Ending
Balance 2006 Additions Deletions Balance 2006
Vehicles b 231,648 § 30,749  § (20,453) 5 241,944
Office furniture and equipment 113,041 13,440 (23,934) 102,547
Field equipment 284,120 22,239 (886) 305,473
Mobile offices used for facilities 97.803 - - 97,803
Resurfacing 22,330 - ~ 22,350
Total capital assets 748,962 66,428 (45,273) 770,117
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization {469,876) (101,330} 43,844 (527,362)
Net capital assets 3 279,086 {34,902y B {1,429} § 243,755
Beginning Ending
Balance 2005 Additions Deletions Balance 2005
Vehicles 3 179,422 55987 % (3,761 % 231,648
Office furniture and equipment 96,6061 16,380 - 113,041
Field equipment 256,045 28,079 - 284,120
Maoabile offices used for facilities 07,803 - - 97,803
Resurfacing 22,350 - - 22.350
Total capital assets 652,281 100,446 (3,761) 748,962
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization (364,271) (109,366) 3,761 (469,876)
Net capital assets 3 288,010 (8,920 3 - 3% 279,086
ITEM #.__ S
-22- PAGE __ =27




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8§ -

Note 9 -

Capital Lease Obligation

COMB leases the following equipment under an agreement accounted for as a capital lease
obligation as of June 30:

2006 2005

Caterpillar Backhoe Loader payment is due in monthly

installments of $1,294, including interest at 4%;

final payment 1s due in May, 2008. The equipment

has a recorded value of $70,501 with accumulated

depreciation of $43,421 and $29,321 as of June 30,

2006 and 2005, respectively h 29,811  § 43,846
Less current portion (14,603) (15,240)
Long-term portion $ 15,208 § 28,606

The following is a schedule of the minimum payments required under the lease together with the
present value at June 30, 2006:

2007 b 15,529
2008 15,529
Total minimum lease payments 31,058
Amount representing interest (1,247)
Present value of lease obligation 3 29,811
Interest expense on the capital lease for the year ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $ 1498

and $2,047, respectively. Total depreciation expense for this equipment for the years ended June
30, 2006 and 2005 was $14,100 and $14,046, respectively.

Note Pavable

On January 20, 2004 COMB entered into an unsecured interest only loan agreement for $220,000
with Santa Barbara Bank and Trust. On June 30, 2004 the loan converted to a fully amortizing loan
with sixteen quarterly principal and interest payments of $14,965 each, beginning September 30,
2004, with interest at 4.0% calculated on the unpaid principal balances.

ITEM #__>
-93 - PAGE R




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RA FT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 -

Note 10 -

Note Payable (Continued)

The future principal payments as of June 30, 2006 are summarized as follows:

2007 $ 56,100
2008 58,306
Total note payable 114,406
Current portion (56,100)
Long term portion b 58,306

Interest expense for this loan for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $5,679 and $3,104,

respectively.

Changes in long term debt amounts for years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Beginning Principal Ending
Balance 2006 Addition Payments Balance 2006
Santa Barbara Banlk & Trust 3 168,584 § - 5 54,178 § 114,406
SOD Act Liabilities 5,494,384 1,025,802 47,141 0,473,045
§ 5662968 3 1035802 § 101,319 § 4,587,451
Beginning Principal Ending
Balance 2005 Addition Payments Balance 2005
Santa Barbara Bank & Trust b 220,000 % - 3 51416 % 168,384
SOD Act Liabilities 5,538,917 - 44,533 5,494,384
$ 5758917 & - 3 05940 § 5,662,968

Joint Powers Insurance Authority

COMB participates in the property and liability program organized by the Association of California
Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA). Employees working for CCRB
receive the benefits of this plan through the employee services agreement. ACWA/JPIA is a Joint
Powers Authority created to provide a self-insurance program to water agencies in the State of
California. The ACWA/JPIA is not a component unit of COMB for financial reporting purposes, as
explained below.

ITEM #___ 5

PAGE __ =27




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10 -

Note 11 -

Joint Powers Insurance Authority (Continued)

ACWA/JPIA provides liability, property and workers’ compensation insurance for approximately
300 water agencies for losses in excess of the member agencies specified self-insurance retention
levels. Individual claims (and aggregate public liability and property claims) in excess of specified
levels are covered by excess insurance policies purchased from commercial carriers, ACWA/JPIA
is governed by a board comprised of members from participating agencies. The board controls the
operations of ACWA/JPIA, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets,
independent of any influence by the members beyond the representation on the board. Each
member shares surpluses and deficiencies proportionately to its participation in ACWA/JPIA.

Additional information and complete financial statements for the ACWA/JPIA are available for

public inspection at 5620 Birdcage Sireet, Suite 200, Citrus Heights, CA, between the hours of 8
a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday through Friday.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

COMB contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System Miscellaneous 2% at 55
Risk Pool, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
California Public Employees Retirement System (“CalPERS™). A menu of benefit provisions, as
well as other requirements, is established by State statutes within California Public Employee
Retirement Law. COMB selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with
CalPERS and adopts those benefits through the Board of Directors’ (the “Board™) authorization.

CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report for the Miscellaneous 2% at 55
Risk Pool. Copies of the annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive
Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Funding Policy

Active plan members in the COMB defined benefit plan (the “Plan”) are required to contribute 7%
of their annual covered salary. COMB pays this amount to CalPERS on behalf of their employees.
The required employer contribution rates for 2006 and 2005 were 9.62% and 5.215%, respectively.
The contribution requirements of the Plan’s members are established by State statute, and the
employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS.

TEM #__~>

-25 - PAGE __70




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11 -

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost

For the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, COMB’s annual pension cost (APC) of $153,730 and
569,117, respectively, was equal to COMB’s required and actual contributions. The required
contribution for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation using the eniry-age-normal-actuarial-cost method, with the contributions determined as
percentage of pay. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% and 8.25% investment rate of
return (net of administrative expenses), for 2006 and 2005, respectively; (b) projected salary
increases of 3.25% to 14.45% and 3.75% to 14.20% a year compounded annually, depending on
age, service, and type of employment, attributable to inflation, for 2006 and 2005, respectively, and
(c) merit increases. Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component of 3.0% and 3.5%, for 2006 and
2005, respectively. The actuarial value of the Plan’s assets was determined using a technique that
smoothes the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a three-year
period. CalPERS unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on a closed basis over 20 years.

Three-year trend information for CalPERS:

Annual Pension Percentage
Fiscal Year Ended Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
2004 i 56,920 100% $ -
2005 69,117 100% -
2006 153,730 100% -

Effective for the June 30, 2003 valuation, CalPERS requires mandatory pooling for plans with less
than 100 active members. For the current year the pooled employer contribution rate is the same as
the stand alone employer contribution rate. The difference between the pool’s normal cost and the
stand alone normal cost will be phased out over five years, beginning next year.

The schedule for funding progress below represents the recent history of the risk pool’s actuarial
value of assets, accrued liabilities, and the relationship of the unfiinded liability.

Annual UL Asa

Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered % of

Valuation Date Liabilities Actuarial Assets Liabilities (UL} _ Ratio Payroll Payroll

June 30, 2003 S 2,596,966,545 § 2,372,879,034 § 224.087,511 91.4% § 725,020,458 30.9%

June 30, 2004 § 2,746,095,668 § 2,460,944.656 § 285,151,012 B89.6% § 743,691,970 38.3%
ITEM #___2

26 PAGE ___J{(




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12 -

Note 13 -

Note 14 -

Deferred Compensation Plan

COMB offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with the Intemal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to employees at their option, permits participants to
defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
participants until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of
compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all
income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are maintained (until paid or made
available to the participant or beneficiary) in a trust account administered by State Sireet Bank and
Trust. Participants have sole rights under the plan in an amount equal to the fair market value ofthe
deferred for each participant. Contributions made by COMB for the employees to the plan for the
years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 were $52,337 and $53,686, respectively.

Related Party Transactions

The Member Units of COMB are the same as the Member Units of another joint powers agency, the
Cachuma Conservation and Release Board (CCRB), with the exception of the Santa Ynez Water
Conservation District Improvement District No. 1 (ID#1), which is not a voting member of CCRB.

COMB has an Employee Services Agreement with CCRB and ID#1. The costs of materials and
supplies, and salaries and related benefits for services performed by COMB under the Employee
Services Agreement are recorded by CCRB as operating expenses. CCRB assesses its for Member
Units to fund 89.65% of this obligation and receives the 10.31% balance from ID#1, in accordance
with provisions of the Employee Services Agreement. These items are not shown as operating
expenses in these financial statements. As of June 30, 2006 and 2005, CCRB owed COMB $63,730
and $28,729, respectively for these services.

COMB receives and remiis the Restricted Cash as described in Note 3 to CCRB.

Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings

COMB is involved in certain matters of litigation that have arisen in the course of conduction
business. Specifically, there exists one case of pending litigation. While it is not possible to predict
the outcome, it is the opinion of management and its legal counsel that the proceedings will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial statements of COMB,

1993 Cachuma Project Autheority Bonds

In 1996 COMB merged with the Cachuma Project Authority (CPA) and as a result of this merger
COMB became the agency responsible for the oversight and payment of the 1993 CPA bonds.
These bonds have not been recorded on the books of COMB since three of the Member Units are

obligated under Joint Participation Agreements to make the principal and interest payments on
behalf of COMB.

ITEM #___ 5

-2 PAGE __ 34




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D RAFT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14 -

Note 15 -

Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

1993 Cachuma Project Authority Bonds (Continued)

On August 19, 2004, COMB refinanced the 1993 CPA bonds with the 2004 Chachuma Operation
and Maintenance Board Bonds (“Bonds™) for $4,480,000 at varying interest rates from 3.000% to
4.625% on behalf of three Member Units. Each of the three Member Unit participants has entered
into one or more joint participation agreements with COMB pursuant to which the Member Unit is
obligated to make certain payments to COMB with respect to certain additions, betterments,
extensions or improvements to such Member Unit’s water system. Such payments, when received
by or on behalf of COMB, will constitute revenues pledged to secure the payment of the principal
of and interest on the Bonds.

Task Orders

There were no open task orders at June 30, 2006.

Comparative Information

The presentation of the June 30, 2005 financial statements has been modified to confirm with the
June 30, 2006 presentation.

s ITEM #___ ~
Bl PAGE __ 52




DRAFT

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

TEM #___>

PAGE 249




DRAFT

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE,
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER MAINTENANCE EXPENSE
For the Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

2006 2005
Operation and Maintenance Expense
Salaries and benefits $ 663,240 b 583,706
Contract labor 64,796 94,895
Equipment 4,666 7,720
Equipment rental 3,923 3,019
Materials and supplies 35,785 54,865
Vehicle maintenance 26,050 24,009
Other expenses 36,372 36,928
Total operation and maintenance expense 3 834,832 3 805,142
General and Administrative Expense
General manager's salary S 87,535 b 101,425
Administrative manager's salary 69,466 80,133
Administrative assistant's salary 51,283 47,833
Accrued wages and vacation 2,203 8,142
Directors fees and expense 12,515 9,879
Legal and audit 61,922 66,538
Liability insurance 35,046 27,676
Health insurance and workers compensation 46,737 43,430
Retirement plan contributions 33,974 27,421
Payroll tax expense 19,543 17,689
Office supplies and expense 8,557 6,009
Administrative travel and conferences 4,401 1,335
Membership dues 4,654 4,396
Employee training 2,285 1,653
Public information 120 915
Other expenses 35,147 31,937
Total general and administrative expense 3 475,388 3 476,411
Other Maintenance Expense
Flow meter upgrades and SCADA system 44,335 5,587
Seismic consultant 1,200 1,058
COMB office / garage building 62,523 51,778
SCC improvement plan and design 66,471 93,851
SCC life expectancy study 75,401 69,935
North portal rehabilitation - 156,933
SCC Valves and control station rehabilitation 469,553 663,057
SCC structure rehabilitation 275,446 262,108
Bradbury Dam Radial Gates project 2,966 10,769
GIS and mapping 14,275 12,937
Storm damage 109,749 16,399
Lauro debis basin 14,068 -
Total other maintenance expense 3 1,135,991 b 1,344,412

See accompanying notes

29 ITEM #___ =

PAGE 335




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD D FT
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE,
OTHER MAINTENANCE EXPENSE AND OTHER BUDGETED EXPENSES
ACTUAL TO BUDGET
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Variance
Budget Amounts Actual Favorable
Original Final Amaunts {(Unfavorable)
Operation and Mainienance Expense
Salaries and benefits b 677,919 S 677,919 b 663,240 3 14,679
Contract labor 88,500 28,500 64,796 23,704
Equipment 56,000 36,000 4,666 51,334
Equipment rental 22,000 22,000 3,923 18,077
Materials and supplies 34,000 34,000 35,785 (1,785)
Vehicle maintenance 22,000 22,000 26,050 (4,050)
Other expenses 43,300 43,300 36,372 6,928
Total operation and maintenance expense b 943,719 5 943,719 b 834,832 5 108,887
General and Administrative Expense
General manager's salary 8 105,103 105,103 5 87,535 3 17,568
Adminisirative manager's salary 83,097 83,097 69,466 13,631
Adminisirative assistant's salary 49421 46421 51,283 {1,862}
Accrued wages and vacation - - 2,203 2,203)
Directors fees and expense 10,763 10,763 12,515 (1,752)
Legal and audit 92,000 92,000 61,922 30,078
Liability insurance 36,000 36,000 35,046 954
Health insurance and workers compensation 51,207 51,207 46,737 4470
Retirement plan contributions 39,021 39,921 33,974 5,947
Payroll tax expense 19,589 19,589 19,543 46
Office supplies and expense 8,000 8,000 8,557 (357
Administrative travel and conferences 5,000 5,000 4,401 599
Membership dues 5,445 5,445 4,654 791
Employee training 4,100 4,100 2,285 1,815
Public information 2,000 2,000 120 1,880
Other expenses 28,290 28,290 35,147 {6,857)
Total general and administrative expense b 539,936 $ 539,936 5 475,388 5 64,548
Other Maintenance Expense
Flow meter upgrades and SCADA system 60,000 60,000 44,339 15,661
Seismic consultant - - 1,200 (1,200}
COMB office / garage building 50,000 50,000 62,523 (12,523)
SCC improvement plan and design 95,000 65,000 66,471 28,529
SCC life expectancy study 05,000 95,000 75,401 19,599
SCC Valves and control station rehabilitation 600,000 600,000 469,553 130,447
SCC structure rehabilitation 303,000 305,000 275,446 29,554
Bradbury Dam Radial Gates project - - 2,566 (2,966)
GIS and mapping 75,000 75,000 14,275 60,725
Storm damage 200,000 200,000 109,749 90,251
Lauro debis basin 50,000 50,000 14,068 35,932
Taotal other maintenance expense $§ 1,530,000 3 1,530,000 $ 1,135,991 3 394,009
Other Budgeted Expenses
Litigation 5 100,000 5 100,000 S 58,748 8§ 41,252
See accompanying notes
e ITEM #__ S

PAGE 36



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
WATER STORAGE REPORT

GLEN ANNIE RESERVOIR
Capacity at 385' elevation:
Capacity at slli of intake at 334' elevation:

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

LAURO RESERVOIR
Capacity at 549’ elevation:
Capacity at sill of intake at 512' elevation:

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Woater in Storage

ORTEGA RESERVOIR
Capacity at 460" elevation:
Capacity at outlet at elevation 440"

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

CARPINTERIA RESERVOIR
Capacity at 384" efevation:
Capacity at outlet elevation 362"

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

TOTAL STORAGE IN RESERVOIRS
Change in Storage

CACHUMA RESERVOIR
Capacity at 750" elevation:
Capacity at sill of tunnel 860" elevation:

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

Area

Evaporation

Inflow

Downstream Release WR8918
Fish Release

Spill/Seismic Release

State Project Water

Change in Siorage

Tecolote Diversion

Rainfall: Month: 0.16 Season:

MONTH: Qctober 2006

518 Acre Feet
21 Acre Feet

345.00 Feet
74.06 Acre Feet

600 Acre Feet
84.39 Acre Feet

546.90 Feet
547.83 Acre Feet

65 Acre Feet
0 Acre Feet

449.70 Feet
28.30 Acre Feet

45 Acre Feet
0 Acre Feet

374.60 Feet
22,63 Acre Feet

598.76 Acre Fest
-27.43 Acre Feet

188,030 Acre Feet
26,109 Acre Feet

746.06 Feet

176,364 AF
2,895

861.2 AF
-147.6 AF
0 AF
400.1 AF
0 AF
100 AF
-3,839 AF
2,560.4 AF

0.16 Percent of NormLT:EM";j
PAGE

oY S,



06-07 ENTITLEMENT

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

WATER PRODUCTION AND WATER USE REPORT
FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2006 AND THE WATER YEAR TO DATE
(All in rounded Acre Feet)

MONTH YTD
TOTAL TOTAL

WATER PRODUCTION:
Cachuma Lake (Tec. Diversion) 2,560 2,560
Tecolote Tunne} Infiltration 181 181
Glen Anne Reservoir 0 0
Cachuma Lake (County Park) ) 5
State Water Diversion Credit 100 100
Gibraltar Diversion Credit 0 0
Bishop Ranch Diversion 0 0
Meter Reads 2,527 2,527
So, Coast Storage pain/(loss) 2n 7N
Totzl Production 2,747 2,747
Total Deliveries 2.600 2,600
Unaccounted-for . 147 147
% Unaccounted-for 5.36% 5.36%

GWD 8B CITY MWD CVWD SYRWCD TOTAL
WATER USE: 1D. #1
M&I 1,085 590 281 122 5 2,083
Agricultural 271 0 31 122 0 444

Same Mo/prev. yr 1,197 379 312 200 6 2,184
M&! Yr to date 1,085 390 281 122 5 2,083
Ag. Yrto date 271 0 51 122 0 444
TOTALYTD 1,356 590 332 244 5 2,527
USAGE % YTD 9.7% 4.2% 0.8% 5.4% 0.2% 6.5%
Previous Year/YTD 1,197 379 312 200 6 2,184
Evaporation 28 38 4 10 0 80
Evaporation, YTD 28 38 4 10 0 80
Entitiement 0,322 8,277 2,631 2,813 2,651 25,714
Carryover 4,884 6,790 715 1,836 0 14,225
Carryover Balances Spilled YTD 0 0 0 0 0 0
Surplus™ 0 0 0 0 0 0
State Water Exchange” 78 53 33 35 (219) 0
Transfers*/Adjustment®*®* 0 0 0 0 0 0
Passthrough H20** 0 (6) 0 0 0 (6)
TOTAL AVAILABLE 14,284 15,114 3,419 4,684 2,432 39,933
REMAINING BALANCE 12,900 14,486 3,083 4,430 2,427 37,326

*
** City relinquished & AF per "Passthrough" agrmt for Octeber 2006 {(Na Passthrough during spill conditions).

State Water Deliveries for October to Lake Cachuma were MWD @ AF; CVWD 0 AF

GWD 0 AF{Morehart 0 AF); City of 5.B. 0 AF; and LaCumbre 100 AF: (Ratheon 0 AF).
# Per SWP Exchange Agrmt GWD received 78 AF; MWD received 53;
City of 3B received 53 AF; and CVWD received 35 AF from ID#1 in October 2006.

PERCENT OF WATER YEAR ELAPSED: 8.3%

ITEM #__5b

PAGE !




-9
ol &

H=
= il
0 oo s§ o [s5  [e6s o 0 (85 Jo o o o 0 o o e 0 [0 o N N [ese Ep.LD
o [0 o 0 0 o 0 0 0 [0 Jo o e Jo o o Jo Jo o [0 o o o 0 1aqUjssaq %
o | |o 0 0o o 0 0 0 [0 Jo jo o Jo o jo Jo o o o o o o 0 1aquisAon
0 0 0 a a 0 a0t 3} 0 aok  §o 0 1] 0 4] 1] 0 0 1] a o 0 0 ool 1290120
0 o 0 0 0 0 051 o 0 0st  §o 0 0 0 a 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0c1 laquajdag
0 0 0 0 0 0 bEL 0 ] (N (1] 0 1] o] 0 1] 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 Ll 1sniny
o o o s |0 |ss  Jes o 0 fe8 fo jo o o o [0 Jo o ¢ o o [0 o 1zl Aop
0o o |0 0 I 03 |o 0o fjog fo o o Jo o fo Jo o o |0 e o |o 09 aunp
0 0 g 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 ] a 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 1] ] 1] o] fey
0 0. 0 0 0 0 _n_ 0 a 0 a g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 [udy
o fo. o 0 o o 0 0 o o o jo jo e o [0 Jo o 0 o o Jo o 0 Lasew
0 0 a 0 o a LLL 0 0 kLl {0 0 0 o o 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 i1l Arenigay
o o o 0 o |o g6 |0 s6- 0 Jo o o Jo o fo Jo |o o o o o o 0 AKenuep
a jo o 0 o joJo D s6 0 fo [0 o Jo o o Jo o o |o o o o P 'eg
9002
05 Ol |pelOIS [5¥ET of OS Of |palois [axe oi| 08 07 |ds/derpaioispyeT off oS o) [paiois [aYeT oif 95 of jpaicispyen of S 0F [AD Wl [paioiS et of W 0) OS of [PAICIS[@ET O] SMVIOL | HINOW
PAIBO OTW _ PAag | PAIBQ SASY PABQ | PAIRg OMIWOT  pARa | pAIRD amo paiEa | paRQ CE's paied | paIsa| ssUBML M PAISQ | JSUBIL PAIBO OMAD PAIRQ | OMATED

(+21em abueyoxa 40 1#01 ‘ADMYAS epnjaul Jou s80Q) ATNO LSVYOD HLNOS - ONILNAOJIV L03rodd H31VM ALV.LS SN0D

ve [0 e 0s 0 0§ Jesz  [se- g6 foee fJos o g Jer o [z Jer o 0 [ 0 0 0 faos [ejol
0]} 0 0g 0t o] 0g 961 Q 0 g6k 0 1] 0 0 1} 4} 0 0 Q [H 0 0 0 QL7 Jaquiadad]
bE a bE 114 o) 02 ge 1} G6 LEL 0 4] 0 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 Sl Jaquiaaon
0 ] 0 i} 0 0 0 i} 0 0 0 4] Q 0 0 Q0 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0 l=tijalle]g]
D 4} 0 0 i} 0 [¥] 0 0 ] 0 Q 0 0 1] i} 4] 0 0 [H 0 Q 0 0 Jaquaidag
0 0 0 Q0 0 0 0 0 o] 1]} 0 0 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0 1} 0 0 0 D 1snBny
0 a 0 0 i 0 [H ] 1} i} 0 0 0 0 0 0 u} 0 0 ¥ D 0 0 0 fnr
0 1] D 0 1] 0 0 4] H 0 0 0 1} 0 o] 4] 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0 0 aunp
4] 0 0 0 i} 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 (¢} fel
o] 4} W] 4] 0 0 0 0 1] o i} 0 ] 0 0 0 8] 0 0 1} 0] 0 0 ] judy
o] 4} 0 4] 0 0 M) 0 1] 0 4} 0 1] 0 i} 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (8] YaIER
0 0 [ 4} 0 a o 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 o a 4] 0 Q0 [} 0 0 0 0 0 Aleruga
0 4] 0 0 0 0 114 65- =P 1 05 2E- 8L ¢l 1] 4" Zl 0 0 43 0 0 0 G fenuep
0 0 [ 0 0 0 1 a 9l i} 0 cE a 0 0 a o] 0 0 [+ 0 0 0 pmid ‘jeg
ooz

g o} |[paioig [ayeq of 55 o |pauoig [ayet o] o8 o) |ds/deas uEQmmxm._ 0y DS o] |paigig _mxmj ojf o5 0] [paroigpyET] if OS ol |AD WOl |Pai0IS EYET E—BE 0] D80} |palalg{aye] ol IMVYIOL H1NOW
RAISG DTN pPalea | palRed SASH PARd | PARBA amioT paBal paEa ame paea f paeg CE'S PARA § PAIRO] JSUBIL AMIN PAIRQ | JSUBIL PAIBA OMAD PAalRQ adA3a

{(1ajem aBueyoxa 10 L#Al ‘ADMHAS apnjoul Jou s30() ATINO LSY0D HLNOS - SNLLNNODJY LO3Arodd 43Llvm JLVLS diNod




Operations Report - October 2006

Cachuma Project water usage for the month of October 2006 was 2,527 acre-
feet, compared with 2,184 acre-feet for the same period in 2005. Cachuma Project
water use for the 12 months ending 31 October 2006 was 24,284 acre-feet, compared
with 27,177 acre-feet for the 12 months ending 31 October 2005.

The average flow from Lake Cachuma into the Tecolote Tunnel was 83 acre-feet
per day. Lake elevation was 747.35 feet at the beginning of the month and 746.06 feet
at the end. Recorded rainfall at Bradbury Dam was 0.16 inches for the month and 0.16
inches for the rainfall season, which commenced on July 1, 2006.

Santa Barbara wheeled 533 acre-feet of Gibraltar water through Lauro Reservoir
during the month. 100 acre-feet of State Water Project water was wheeled through
Cachuma Project facilities and delivered to South Coast Member Units during the
month.

Staff completed and submitted four project information forms for COMB
Capital Improvement Projects to be included in the Integrated Regional Water
Management Plan (IRWMP). The projects included were the Second Pipeline of the
SCC, the Lauro Debris Basin Project, the SCC Vent Structure Modification and
Rehabilitation, and the rehabilitation of 26 SCC stream crossings. It is important to get
project into the plan to be eligible for bond finding. Staff will continue to evaluate
future project to determine potential for inclusion in this process. In the near future the
SCC Capital Improvement Program will be integrated into the IRWMP process.

Structure rehabilitation continued this month with work on blow-off piping.
Training on the welding of HDPE occurred for use with blow-off structures. Staff
welded one section of HDPE pipe for use as discharge piping at a blow-off. This piping
was installed and tested. New covers were designed and ordered for meter vaults in the
Carpinteria Reach. These covers are constructed of aluminum for low corrosion and

light weight properties. One new cover was installed and tested. This work will
continue through the fall until first rains.

Miscellaneous work completed this month includes:
*  Weed abatement continued at Glen Anne Reservoir with California
Department of Forestry.
» (Corona Del Mar Water Turnout electrical work continued.

s Staff participated in a Tri-Counties training seminar for Distribution
Certification continuing education hours.

» Fire extinguisher training for entire staff was conducted with large test
fires.

» Work continued on the COMB GIS system.

» Yard cleanup was conducted on the Pesticide and Flammable Material
Sheds.

Routine operation and maintenance activities conducted during the month
included:

ITEM #__€ ¢

PAG EM RO-10-2006 |




» Sample water at North Portal Intake Tower

o Complete Maintenance Management Program work orders

e Read anode rectifiers and monitor cathodic protection systems

¢ Monitor conduit right-of-way and respond to Dig Alert reports

» Read piezometers and underdrains at Glen Anne, Lauro and Ortega
Dams

e Read meters, conduct monthly dam inspections, and flush venture meters

Brett Gray
Operations Supervisor

ITEM #___Lc
pARI0Ws




| f
United States Department of the Interior

BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Mid-Pacific Regional Office
2800 Cottage Way

IN REPLY Sacramento, California 95825-1898
REFER TO:

MP-440 0CT 3 0 2006
WTR-4.00

Ms. Kathleen A. Rees

Acting Manager-Secretary-Treasurer

Cachuma Operation and Mainienance
Board

3301 Laurel Canyon Road

Santa Barbara, California 93105

Subject: Safety of Dams Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923 Between the United States and
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (Board) — Lauro Dam - Cachuma
" Project

Dear Ms. Rees: -

Enclosed are three bluebound originals of Contract No. 05-WC-20-2923. If the enclosed
contract is acceptable to the Board, please have the authorized officials of the Board sign each of
the originals. Al of the originals of this contract should then be returned to this office at the
above address, Attention: Ms. Leslie Barbre (MP-440), for execution by the Regional Director
of the Bureau of Reclamation’s Mid-Pacific Region. Please note that the contract will be dated
after execution by the Regional Director. In addition, an original board resolution approving the
contract as to form and authorizing the designated officials to sign the contract is to be submitted
along with the contracts. '

If you have any questions, please contact Ms. Kay Moore, Water Rights and Contracts Branch, at
916-978-5245 (TDD 916-978-5245).

Kirk C. Rodgers
Regional Director

Enclosures - 3

ITEM #___la

PAGE {




Contract No.
05-W(C-20-2923
UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION

.Cachuma Project, California

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AND
THE CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD -
FOR THE REPAYMENT OF FUNDS EXPENDED FOR FEDERALLY
PERFORMED SAFETY OF DAMS ACT MODIFICATION PROGRAM
AT TAURO DAM AND RESERVOIR

Table of Contents

Article No. Title Page No,
PrEambIE ..o oot e 1
Explanatory RECILAlS .......c.ccviniiiicniiirinsniecciiieniesns e e vnssasserssssssesessessnsssesess 123

1 Term 0f the ComtIact.......ccevievieeircrce et s e n s rae e ebans 3
2 Reclamation Safety of Dams Act Modifications .....eeeveveecereueinrsreceereeesesescseseeenns 5
3 Repayment Obligation--Terms of Repayment .......ccccvcovvvevrereeerirrnvrnerininsiversresnns 5-7
4 Title to Remain in the United StAtES.....cccviveieiieriereie et 8
5 Charges for Delinquent PaymEntS. ...ccccrrveecereerieienseesiesiesasesseeessssssssessesassesssssnes 8
6 General Obligation--Benefits Conditioned upon Payment ........co.cocvvverevirrrnnnnnne. 8-9
7 Confirmation of Contract........cvemieinercsiesie s e ecssseess e eseens feverereeeeeene 9
8 Contingent on Appropriation or Allotment of Funds .............................................. 9
2] Officials not 10 Benefit.......coveeveirire e et e 9
10 Assignment Limited--Successors and Assigns Obhgated ....................................... 9
11 Books, Records, and REPOITS ........ccveeicerereerecieirersioeseeessesesssssesssssenssesssason 9-10
12 Rules, Regulations, and Determinations.........ccocceeveeneass et e e e 10
13 Medium for Transmitting Payments ......ocecceveeerieecreereeeieecvceessiseesessseeseeseerernenee 10
14 Contract Drafting Considerations ........ocovveveceniersmreereerrsessssrersssessssneesessesseesses 10

ITEM #__Ta

PAGE 2




Article No.

15

Table of Contents - continued

Title Page No.
NOLCES «oo e evereererrnernneen et etreeetesaeessteameaneeseaae—esroriibisaesesiserteenntrnrans rereeneveas 10
SIENATUTE PaZE...ecceeeieeerieii ittt e e b s 11

Exhibit A - Cost Sensitivity Study Identified in the Safety of Dams
Design/Modification Phase Project Management Plan - Lauro Dam,
Cachuma Project, California, Dated March 2005

Exhibit B - Safety of Dams Design/Modification Phase Project Management Plan
- Laura Dam, Cachuma Project, Dated November 2005

Exhibit C - Municipal and Industrial Annual Payment Schedule
Exhibit D - Irrigation Anmual Payment Schedule

Exhibit E - Five (5)-Year Payment Capacity Schedule

ITEM #___1
PAGE __ 3




oW N =

O Co ~J Oy Ln

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Cachuma Project, California

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AND
THE CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
FOR THE REPAYMENT OF FUNDS EXPENDED FOR FEDERALLY
PERFORMED SAFETY OF DAMS ACT MODIFICATION PROGRAM
AT LAURO DAM AND RESERVOIR

THIS CONTRACT, made this day of , 2006, in

pursuance generally of the Act of June 17, 1902 (32 Stat. 388), and acts amendatory thereof or-
supplementary thereto, including ﬂle‘Reclamaﬁon Safety bf Dams Act of November 2, 1978, as
amended August 28, 1984 (92 Stat. 2471), October 27, 2000 (114 Stat. 1441), January 10, 2002 (115
Stat. 2230), and D.ecember 3, 2004 (118 Stat. 2627), all collectively hereinafter referred to-as the

Federal Reclamation Laws, between the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, hereinafter referred to as

the United States, acting through the Regional Director, Mid-Pacific Region, Bureau of Reclamation

(“Contracting Qfﬁcer”), and the CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
(*Contractor™), a California J oint Powers Authority consisting of the Carpinteria Valley Water District,
the Montecito Water District, the Goleta Water District, the City of Santa Barbara, and the Santa Ynez
River Wate;' Conservation District, Improvernént District No. 1, (“Member Units™), duly organized,
existing, and acting pursuant to the laws thereof, with its principal place of business in Santa Barbara,

California.

EXPLANATORY RECITALS
A, The United States constructed Lauro Dam (Dam) and other related
facilities, and acquired certain lands, water rights, and other property, all referred to as the Cachuma

Project (Project).

ITEM #__l=
PAGE _Y




28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

B. As a result of acquisition of new sei;mic data, and changes in
state of art criteria, the United States has determined that the Dam aﬁd related facilities must be
modified pursuant to the Reclamation Safety of Dams (SOD) Act, as amended, to preserve its
structural integrity. |

| C. The failure of the Dam would cause extensive flood damage downstream,

potential loss of life, and would reduce the water supply available for Project purposes.

D. The Reclamation SOD Act authorizes the Secretary of the Interior, through the
Bureau of Reclamation, to perform the corrective work, provided that fifteen percent (15%) of the costs
incurréd to correct the safety problems, inclpding appropriate interest, are reimbursed by Proj ect
beneficiaries. |

- E. The estimated cost of the necessary SOD Act modification (Modification) to the

Dam and related facilities is $17,314,125 which is the “reasonable maximum cost” as determined by

Rt_eclamation, and which is set forth in Exhibit A. The “reasonable minimum cost” is estimated at .
$9,062,514, and the “most- likely cost” at $12,679,942. Reclamation ié committed to using its best
efforts to manage this Modification so as to minimize costs and to provide a timely solution that will
reduce the risk of Dam failure.

F. In January 2005, Reclamation completed a Final Environmental Assessment for

the SOD Modification of the Dam and issued a Finding of No Significant Tmpact on February 4, 2005,

.as amended by letter dated April 4, 2005.

ITEM #__Ta__
PAGE __.5




46

47

48

49

50

51

VA

53.

54

55

56

57

58

39

60

61

62

63

64

Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

G. The parties agree that fifteen percent (15%) of the actual total
Modification cost, less allowable cultural resources costs, plus appropriate interest, is reimbursable

pursuant to this Contract.

TERM OF THE CONTRACT

1. {(a) This .Contract shall become effective on the date first written above, and shall
remain in effect for a tm"m of 50 years from the date of Substantial Completion as defined in
Article 3(a) of this Contract, or until the Contractor has fully repaid to the United States the amount
described in Article 3(f), whichever occurs first.
RECLAMATION SAFETY OF DAMS ACT MODIFICATION -
2. .(a) The United States shall finance and perform all appropriate Modiﬁcaﬁon of the
Dam and related facilities. Such Modiﬁ;:ation shall include, but are not limited to, the following
activities:
(0 construction of filter and drain zones downstream of the impervious core;
(2) construction of a filter drain; and
t3) modification of the outlet works butterfly valve hydraulic system;
(b)  Imaddition o the above, costs incurred by the Unitéd States for previous
studies and investigations related to the Modification beginning July 8, 2002 (the beginning date
of the corrective action study phase), and negotiations with the Contractor of this Contract are

considered components of the amount expended as part of the Modification.

ITEM #___Ta____
PAGE __ L




65
66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

83

34

Contract No. 05-W(-20-2923

(c)  The Modification charges shall not include or duplicate any costs
chargeable to other projects (including SOD review or modification for other projects or general
scientific or technical analysis not directly related to the Dam). -

(d) Reclamatio-n will provide the Contractor information on the Modification
sta.tus, cost expenditures, and other issues arising from the Modification, consistent with the
Communications Plan, as may be amended ﬁ;:)m time to time by mutual agreement of the parties,
whilch was included in the final “Safety of Dams, Design/Modification Phase, Project
Management Plan - Lauro Dam, Cachuma Project, California” dated March 2005, as superseded

by the Safety of Dams, Design/Modification Phase, Projedt Management Plan, dated

November 2005, attached as Exhibit B, and incorporated by this reference.

()  When total actual costs of the Modification have been identiﬁéd, the
Contracting Ofﬁcef shall prm‘!ide to the Contractor, in writing, a final draft cost report and total
repayment obligation for the Modification to the Dam. The Contractor shall have one hundre;i and
twenty (120) days from receipt of this final draft to review and comment on the final cost report and

the Contractor’s final total repayment obligation. The Contractor shall have access to

.documentation relating to the Modification costs throughout the one hundred and twenty (120)-day

period. The Contracting Officer shall issue the final cost report, final total repayment obligation and
the annual irrigation (Irrigation) and municipal and industrial (Mé&l) repayment after consultation
with the Contractor, not later than sixty (60) days after receipt of the Contractor’s comments. The

Contractor may appeal the Contracting Officer’s decision on the final cost report and final total

ITEM #___[a

PAGE 7




85

86

87

88

89

90

91

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

Coniract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

repayment obligation to the Commissioner of Reclamation, who shall make the final administrative

agenéy determination. The Contracting Officer's final cost report, final total repayment obligation,

apd the anmal Irrigation and M&I repayment schedules sﬂall take effect during the pendency of any
appeal. | |

REPAYMENT OBLIGATION--TERMS OF REPAYMENT

3‘. (7a) " The Contractor shall repay to the United States fifieen percent (15%) of the total
actual cost incurred by the United States for the Modification described in Article 2, and as detelmiﬂéd
m accordance-with provisions of Article;, 2(e). This repayment obligation shall be allocated fifty and
seventy-two hundredths percent (50.72%) to Iirigation uses (Irrigation Allocation), and forty-nine and
twenty—eiglit hundreds percent (49.28%) to M&I uses (M&I Allocation). The beginning repayment

date for the M&I Allocation shail be October 1, of the year following the determination that the

Modification is deemed “Substantially Complete,” and shall be an amount equal to fifieen percent

(15%) of the then-identified total actual costs. Substantially Complete shall mean that time when the
majority of the construction work identified in Article 2 has been completed, the Dam and reservoir
can be operated within normal limits, and the risk that existed prior to the Modification is lowered to

an acceptable level. The Contracting Officer shall provide the Contractor written notification of the

-date the Modification is deemed Substantially Complete.

(b) The M&I Allocation shall include interest during construction (IDC), which
commences on the date when the first expenditure of Federal funds is made toward the completion of
the Modification described in Article 2. IDC will cease to accrue on the date the Reclamation SOD

Act Modification is deemed Substantially Compiete as defined in Article 3(a). The M&I Allocation, as

ITEM #__Ya
PAGE __8 _




106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

determined when the Modification is deemed Substantially Complete, is currently projected to be
$1,279,860. The schedule of M&I annual payments as shown on Exhibit C shall be adjusted, if
necessary, to reflect the M &I Allocation based on actual costs as of the date the Modification 1s
deemed Substantially Complete aJ:Id shall again be adjusted, if necessary, when the final reimbursable
cost of the Modification has been determined. The int_erest rate used in this Contract, is calculated in
accordance with the Act of August 28, 1984 (Public Law 98-404, 98 Stat. 1481); which says in part
that “The interest rate used shall be determined by the Secretary of the Treasury, taldng into
consideration average market yields on outstanding marketable obligations of the United States with
remaining periods to maturity comparable to the application reimbursement period during the month
preceding the fiscal year in which the interest rates .a:re incurred. To the extent that more than one
interest rate is determined pursuant to the preceding sentence, the Secretary of the Treasury shall
establish an interest rate at the weighted average of the rates so determined.”

(c) The beginning repayment date fo; the Irrigation Allocation shall be October 1,
2016. Reclamation’s Irrigation payment capacity study shows that the Contractor at this time, does not
have an ability to pay for tﬁe Irrigation Allocation. Howe%/er, the Contractor agrees to make payments
to repay the hrrigation Allocation beginning October 1, 2016, and ending October 1, 2056. The
Contractc;r shall pay to the United States the annual payment as identified in Exhibit D which is based
on the estimated Irrigation Allocation of $1,317,258. The schedule of Irrigation annual payments
shown on Exhibit D shall be adjusted, if necessary, to reflect the Irrigation Allocation baseci on the
actual costs as of the date the Modification is deemed Substantially Complete and shall égain be

adjusted, if necessary, when the final reimbursable cost of the Modification has been determined.

ITEM #___7e
PAGE 9




127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

(d  The Contracting Officer will perform an Irrigation payment capacity study to
reevaluate the Member Units Irrigation ability to pay at five (5)-year intervals, the first to be completed
October 1, 2006, and the lastr on October 1, 2056, as shown on Exhibit E. If in the opinion of the
Con&acting Officer and in consultation with the Contractor, the updated payment capacity study
indicates that there is an Irrigation ability to pay, greater than the annual payment shown on Exhibit D,
the Contractor shall pay that amount for the ﬁext five (5)-year period. Any updated payment capacity
study will be based on the residuai farm income of the Member Units’ irrigators, after deductions for
on-farm production costs and investment expenses, less water distribution and other operating costs of
the Member Units and considering the financial conditions of the Member Units. The Contractor and
the Contracting Officer shall consuit on the updated payment capacity no later than one (1) year prior to
the upcoming five (5)-year period.

(e) The Contractor reserves the right to prepay all or any portion of the outstanding
balance of the M&I and/or Irrigation Allogation at any time without penalty.

® The Contracting Officer shall make a good faith effort to keep the total actual
costs of the Modification below the “reasonable maximum coSt” as discussed in Exhibit A, and to
bring the total actual costs as close to the “reasonable minimum cost” as possible. In thelevent the
actual cost of the Modification exceeds $17,314,125, the parties shall consult and determine a method

whereby the reimbursable amount over the “reasonable maximurm cost” will be paid.

PAGE [0

ITEM #___la




145

146

147

148

148

150

151

152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160

161
162
163
164

165
166
167

168

169
170
171
172

Contract Ne. 05-W(C-20-2923

TITLE TO REMAIN IN THE UNITED STATES

4. (a) Title to all the Project facilities shall be and remain in the name of the United
States unless otherwise provided by Congress, notwithstanding the full payment to the United States, of
the Contractor's repayment obligations under this Contract.
(b) The rights a}nd obligations created hereby are supplementary to and do not
supersede or affect the rights and obligations under any prior contracts between the United States and
the Contractor.

CHARGES FOR DELINQUENT PAYMENTS

5. (a) The Contractor shall be subject to interest, administrative, and penalty charges
on de]mquent payments. If a payment is not received by the due date, the Contractor shall pay an
interest charge on the delinquent payment for each day the payment is delinquent beyond the due date.
If a payment becomes 60 days delinquent, in addition to the interest charge, the Contractor shall pay an”
administrative charge to cover additional costs of billing and processing the delinquent payment. Ifa
payment is delinquent 90 days or more, in addition to the interest and administrative charges, the
Contractor shall pay a penalty charge for each day the payment is delinquent beyond the due date,
based on the remaining balance of the payment due at the rate of 6 percent per year. The Contractor
shall also pay any fees incurred for debt collection services associated with a delinquent payment

(®)  The interest charge rate shall be the greater of the rate prescribed quarterly in the
Federal Register by the Department of the Treasury for application to overdue payments or the interest
rate of 0.5 percent per month. The interest charge rate will be determined as of the due date and remain
fixed for the duration of the delinquent period.

(c) Wher a partial payment on a delinquent account is received, the amount
received shall be applied first to the penalty charges, second to the admjmstratlva charges, third to the

accrued interest, and finally to the overdue payment.

GENERAL OBLIGATTON--BENEFITS CONDITIONED UPON PAYMENT

6. (a) The obligation of the Contractor to pay the United States as provided in this
Contract is a general obligation of the Contractor notwithstanding the manner in which the obligation
may be distributed among the Contractor's Member Units and notwithstanding the default of mdlwdual
Member Units in thexr obligation to the Contractor.

FTEM # Ta
] PAGE ____ _f




173
174
175
176
177
178
179

180

181
182
183
184
185

186

187

188
189
190
191
192

193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202

203
204

Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

®) The payment of charges becoming due pursuant to this Contract is a condition
precedent to receiving benefits under this Contract. The United States shall not make water available
to the Contractor through Project facilities during any period in which the Contractor may be in arrears
for more than 12 months in the payment of any Reclamation Safety of Dams Act charges due the
United States. The Contractor shall not deliver water under the terms and conditions of this Contract
for lands or parties that in arrears more than 12 months in the payment of Reclamation Safety of Dams
Act charges as levied or established by the Contractor.

CONFIRMATION OF CONTRACT

7. The Contractor, after the execution of this Contract, shall promptly seek to secure a
decree of a court of competent jurisdiction of the State of California, confirming the execution of this
Contract. The Contractor shall furnish the United States a certified copy of the final decree, the
validation proceedings, and all pertinent supporting records of the court approving and confirming this
Contract and decreeing and adjudging it to be lawful, valid, and binding on the Contractor. This
Contract shall not be binding on the United States until such final decree has been secured.

CONTINGENT ON APPROPRIATION OR ALLOTMENT OF FUNDS

8. The expenditure or advance of any money or the performance of any obligation of the
United States under this Contract shall be contingent upon appropriation or allotment of funds.
Absence of appropna’uon or allotment of funds shall not relieve the Contractor from any obligations
under this Contract. No liability shall accrue to the United States in case funds are not appropriated or
allotted.

OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT

9. No Member of or Delegate to the Congress, Resident Commissioner, or official of the
Contractor shall benefit from this Contract other than as a water user or landowner in the same mamner
as other water users or landowners. :

ASSIGNMENT LIMITED--SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OBLIGATED

10.  The provisions of this Contract shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the
parties hereto, but no assignment or transfer of this Contract or any right or interest therein shall be
valid until approved in writing by the Confracting Officer.

BOOKS. RECORDS. AND REPORTS

11.  The Contractor shall establish and maintain accounts and other books and records
pertaining to administration of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including the Contractor’s
financial transactions. Reports shall be furnished to the Contracting Officer in such form and on such

. ITEM #__7a
PAGE ___12




205
206
207

208

209
210
211
212

213

214
215
216
217

218
219
220
221

222

223
224
225

226

227
228
229
230
231
232
233

Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

date or dates as the Contracting Officer may require. Subject to applicable Federal laws and
regulations, each party to this Contract shall have the right during office hours to examine and make
copies of the other party's books and records relating to matters covered by this Contract.

RULES, REGULATIONS, AND DETERMINATIONS

12, The Contracting Officer shall have the right to make determinations necessary to
administer this Contract that are consistent with the expressed and implied provisions of this Contract,
the laws of the United States and the State, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the Secretary
of the Interior. Such determinations shall be made in consultation with the Contractor.

MEDIUM FOR TRANSMITTING PAYMENTS

13.  (a)  All payments from the Contractor to the United States under this Contract shall
be by the medium requested by the United States on or before the date payment is due. The required
method of payment may include checks, wire transfers, or other types of payment specified by the
United States.

(8)  Upon execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall furnish the Contracting
Officer with the Contractor’s taxpayer’s identification mumber (TIN). The purpose for requiring the
Contractor’s TIN is for collecting and reporting any delinquent amounts arising out of the Contractar’s
relationship with the United States,

CONTRACT DRAFTING CONSIDERATIONS

14. Articles 1 through 4 of this Contract have been drafted, negotiated, and reviewed by the
parties hereto, each of whom is sophisticated in the matters to which this Contract pertains, and 1o one
party shall be considered to have drafied the stated articles.

NOTICES

15.  Any notice, demand, or request authorized or required by this Contract shall be deemed
to have been given, on behalf of the Contractor, when mailed, postage prepaid, or delivered to the
Regional Director, Mid-Pacific Region, Bureau of Reclamation, 2800 Cottage Way, Sacramento,
California 95825-1898, and on behalf of the United States, when mailed, postage prepaid, or delivered
to the General Manager, Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board, 3301 Laurel Canyon Road,
Santa Barbara, California 93105-2017. The designation of the addressee or the address may be
changed by notice given in the same manner as provided in this Article for other nofices.

ITEM #___la
PAGE 13

10




234

235

236

237

238
239

240

241
242

243
244
245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252
253

Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923
IN WITNESS WHERECQF, the parties hereto have executed this Coniract as of

the day and year first above written.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

By:
Regional Director, Mid-Pacific Region
Bureau of Reclamation
(SEAL)
(SEAL) CACHUMA OPERATION AND
MAINTENANCE BOARD
By:
C. Charles Evans
President, Board of Directors
Attest:

Kathleen A. Rees
Secretary of the Board

Approved as to Form:

By:

William H. Hair
General Counsel

y . ITEM #__7a
© PAGE ___1y




Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

EXHIBIT A

Cost Sensitivity Study Identified in the Safety of Dams Desien/Modification Phase Project
Management Plan - Lauro Dam, Cachuma Project, California, Dated March 2005

ITEM #____(g
PAGE ___ IS




Cost Sensitivity Study

A cost sensitivity analysis was performed to better understand and identify budget and schedule
risk. The ‘Most Likely' category represents a set of assumptions that are reasonably expected to
occur including encountering some unexpected problems or conditions that would be typical for
a project of this type. The ‘Reasonable Minimum® scenario represents a situation where few
problems are encountéred, including a fairly low bid for construction and a reasonably short
construction duration. The ‘Reasonable Maximum® scenario assumed that many problems would
- occur, such as extensive dewatering requirements, high materials costs, limited construction
contract competition, and exiended construction duration. The results of the analysis are
tabulated below. o

Activi Reasonable Most Likely Reasonable
Minimum Maximum

Corrective Acfion Study § 610,000 ¥ 663,120 $ 729,432
Project Administration § .191,401 § 279,308 § 434,493
Design Data § 147,579 § 196,772 § 245,965
Final Design § 528,340 $ 621,576 $ 776,970
Procurement $ 83,570 § 176,500 3 274,284
Construction Management § 700,000 $ 886,500 § 1,250,000
Construction Design Support § 116,787 § 202,756 § 272,504
Post Construction § 189,075 § . 273,626 5 423302
Public Involvement 5 18013 5 60,044 b 90,066
Emergency Action Plan & 21,199 § 31,640 5 47.460
Environmental Compliance | ¥ 56,550 $ 113,100 $ 169,650
Construction Contracts* 56,400,000 $ 9,175,000 § 12,600,000
Total Project Budget $9,062,514 $12,679,942 $ 17,314,125

% = Includes contingencies and the cost of relocating the overhead utility wires.

ITEM #___7a
PAGE ___1¢




Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

EXHIBIT B

Safety of Dams Design/Modification Phase Project Maﬁagement Plan -
Lauro Dam, Cachuma Project, California. Dated November 2005

ITEM #__7a

PAGE L7




Communication Plan

This plan is intended to serve as a baseline for communications between Reclamation and the
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB}) during the design and construction phase
of this project. It is Reclamation’s intention to provide each of the reports listed below to COMB
prior to COMB’s board meeting held each month. However, there has been a variety of delays
that have often made it difficult to provide the financial reports in time for that months board {
meeting and delays in sending the other reports will probably also be encountered. In any case,
Reclamation will_provide the reports as soon as practical, either individually or in combination.

Construction Reports

Once construction commences, the Mid-Pacific Construction Office will provide a monthly ,
construction report that is to include (at a minimum) the description of work performed during
that month, expected upcoming work, and the dollar cost of work performed for that month,
cumulative work performed to date, Reclamation points of contact, and any impending contract
modifications. This report will be based on Reclamation’s L-29 Monthly Construction Report
for Lauro Dam. , )

Financial Reports

The Mid-Pacific Regional Office will provide a mbnthly financial report. These cost reports
provide monthly and cumulative costs in a format that has been jointly developed by
Reclamation and the Family Farm Alliance. These reports will be provided to COMB each

month.

Earned Value Analvses

The Mid-Pacific Regional Office will perform monthly updates to the earned value analysis. -
These monthly updates, including a graph of planned and actual data, will be provided each
month, ‘

Monthly Tele-Conference Meetings

Reclamation will arrange monthly teleconference meetings with COMB. Reclamation will
provide an update of current activities associated with the project. COMB is encouraged to
participate and/or make suggestions for upcoming events. Reclamation will generate minutes of
these meetings if requested by COMB.

Weekly Construction Meetings

During the construction phase of this project, Reclamation will hold weekly coordination
meetings with the construction contractor. COMB wil be invited o participate in these

ITEM # Ta
(R

' PAGE ____ (8




meetings or as a minimum a separate meeting will be held between COMB and Reclamation to
coordinate construction activities with operation and maintenance activities,

Special Reports and Analyses

Reclamation generates a number of reports as part of this Safety of Dams project. These reports
include, but are not limited to: Environmental Assessment, Value Engineering Report, Corrective
Action Alternatives Report, Modification Report, Seisthic Investigations, Consultant Reviews,
and Drawing/Specification Packages. These reports will be provided to COMB when finalized
and in many cases, while they are in draft form for COMB comment.

Special Reviews and Meetings

COMB will be invited to participate in most reviews and meetings including, value engineering
studies, consultant review board meetings, public meetings, design reviews, and construction
reviews. Notification of these meetings will be made during the monthly teleconference calls
and/or by email or letter mvitation.

Daily Communications

COMB is encouraged to make telephone or email enquiries to the Project Manager at any time
during the project. The Project Manager will include additional Reclamation staff where needed.
COMB is also encouraged to communicate with Area Office and Construction Office personnel
at any time regarding this project. However, should any problems arise, the Project Manager
should be informed. ' '

ITEM - /a

-_‘—-—_"————.
PAGE ___i1g



Contract No. 05-WC-20-2923

EXHIBIT C

Municipal and Indusirial Annual Payment Schedulp

Based on a Substantially Completé date of October 1, 2007

October 1, 2008 $ 51,194+ October 1, 2023 $ 51,194
October 1, 2009 $ 51,194 October 1, 2024 $ 51,194
QOctober 1, 2010 $ 51,194 October 1, 2025 $ 51,194
October 1, 2011 $ 51,194 October 1, 2026 $ 51,194
October 1, 2012 $ 51,194 " October 1, 2027 $51,194
October 1, 2013 $ 51,194 October 1,2028 $ 51,194
October 1, 2014 $ 51,194 October 1, 2028 $ 51,194
October 1, 2015 $ 51,194 October 1, 2030 $ 51,194
October 1, 2016 $ 51,194 October 1, 2031 $ 51,194
QOctober 1, 2017 $ 51,194 . October 1, 2032 § 51,194
October 1, 2018 $ 51,194
Octaber 1, 2019 § 51,194
October 1, 2020 - $ 51,194
October 1, 2021 $ 51,194
October 1, 2022 $ 51,194

M&I Annual Payment Calculation - $17,314,125 (Reasonable Maximum Cost) x 15% (percent
reimbursable by Project beneficiaries under SOD Act) = $2,597,118 x 49.28% (M&I Allocation)
=§1,279,860/25 years = $51,194 per year (estimated M&I annual payment*)

* Estimated Annual Payment - does not include IDC or repayment interest - M&I payment .
schedule shall be adjusted to include IDC interest and repayment interest when the Modification
is deemed Substantially Complete. The repayment interest rate will be the rate in effect at the
time of substantial completion and will be based on the M&I term of repayment (25 years). The
schedule shall again be adjusted, if necessary, when the final reimbursable cost of the
Modification has been determined.

Formula for calculation of M&I annual payment: Mé&I allocation plus IDC = total M&]I
allocation. Total M&I Allocation x amortization factor to amortize the obligation over a twenty-
five (25)-year repayment term at an interest rate to be determined = annual M&I repayment
amount.

ITEM #__7a

PAGE __20




EXHIBIT D

Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

Irrigation Annual Payment Schedule

Based on a Substantially Complete date of October 1, 2007

October 1, 2008 $ 0 October 1, 2033  §$ 32,128

October 1, 2009 $§ 0 QOctober 1, 2034 $32,128
October 1, 2010 § 0 October 1, 2035 $32,128
October 1, 2011 $ 0 October 1, 2036 $32,128
October 1, 2012 $ 0 October 1, 2037 $32,128
October 1, 2013 $ 0 October 1, 2038 $32,128
October 1, 2014 $ 0 October 1, 2039 $32,128
October 1, 2015 3 0 October 1, 2040 $32,128
October 1, 2016 $ 0 October 1, 2041 $32,128
October 1, 2017 $32,128 October 1, 2042 532,128
October 1, 2018 532,128 October 1, 2043 $32,128
October 1, 2019 $ 32,128 October 1, 2044 $ 32,128
October 1, 2020 $ 32,128 October 1, 2045 $32,128
October 1, 2021 $ 32,128 October 1, 2046 $32,128
October 1, 2022 $32,128 Octaber 1, 2047 $32,128
October 1, 2023 $ 32,128 October 1, 2048 $32,128
QOctober 1, 2024 $ 32,128 October 1, 2049 $32,128
October 1, 2025 $32,128 October 1, 2050 $32,128
October 1, 2026 532,128 October 1, 2051 $32,128
October 1, 2027 $ 32,128 October 1, 2052 $32,128
October 1, 2028 $ 32,128 October 1, 2053 532,128
October 1, 2029 532,128 October 1, 2054 $32,128
October 1, 2030 $32,128 October 1, 2055 $32,128
October 1, 2031 $32,128 October 1, 2056 $32,128
October 1, 2032 $32,128 October 1, 2057 $32,128

Irrigation Annual Payment Calculation - $17,314,125 (Reasonable Maximum Cost) x 15%
(percent reimbursable by Project beneficiaries under SOD Act) = 50.72% (Irrigation Allocation)
=$1,317,258/41 years = $32,128 per year (estimated annual payment*)

*Estimated Annual Payment shall be adjusted, if necessary, when the Modification is deemed

Substantially Complete, and again, if necessary, when the final reimbursable cost of the
Modification has been determined.

ITEM #___/a

PAGE 2 |




EXHIBIT E

Contract No. 05-W(C-20-2923

Five {5) -Year Payment Capacity Schedule

Five (5) -Year Payment Capa;:itv Study To Be Completed By the Following Dates:

October 1, 2006
October 1, 2011
October 1, 2016
October 1, 2021
October 1, 2026
October 1, 2031
October 1, 2036
October 1, 2041
October 1, 2046
QOctober 1, 2051
October 1, 2056



RESOLUTION NO. 440

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CACHUMA OPERATION
AND MAINTENANCE BOARD APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE U.S.
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION FOR THE REPAYMENT OF REIMBURSABLE
FUNDS EXPENDED FOR FEDERALLY PERFORMED SAFETY OF DAMS
MODIFICATION WORK AT LAURO DAM

RECITALS

The Board of Directors of the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) is
proposing to enter into an Agreement with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation for repayment of
reimbursable costs associated with the Lauro Dam Safety of Dams Modification Project,

It has been determined that that Lauro Dam must be modified to preserve its structural integrity,
and that this project is for maintenance of existing facilities and exempt from CEQA pursuant to
Section 15301 CEQA Regulations.

The Amendment to the Safety of Dams Act dated August 28, 1984 provides that fifteen
percent (15%) of the cost of the modifications is relmbursable.

It Is in the best interest of COMB to enter into said Agreement.

COMB has reviewed the terms and conditions of the Agreement and has determined that they
are acceptable.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of COMB that:

1. The facts set forth in the recitals above and in the documents referenced herein are true and
correct, and the Board so finds and determines,

2. The Board hereby approves said final Agreement.

3. The Board hereby authorizes the President of the Board to execute the Agreement, for and
on behalf of COMB, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

4. COMB's officers and staff are authorized and directed to do all things necessary and
appropriate to complete the processing and execution of the Agreement.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cachuma Operation and

Maintenance Board, at a Regular Board Meeting held on the 27" day of March 2008, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Abel, Evans, Lieberknecht, Williams, Bettencourt

NAYES: None

ABSENT/ABSTAIN: None

[SEAL]

APPROVED: M g
President of the Board

s

Secretary of the Board

rs/sec.comb/resolutions/RES 404 LauraSODAgrmi

ITEM # la
PAGE X 3




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

MEMORANDUM
Date: November 13, 2006
To: Members of the Board of Directors
From: Brett Gray, Operations Supervisor

RE: Updated Information on Lauro Debris Basin Project

Recommended Action: None at this time.

Discussion: Enclosed are the original alternative, the new alternative and
associated estimated costs for the Lauro Debris Basin Project. The original
alternative is Alternative A and the new alternative is Alternative B. Alternative
B was developed by staff at the request of the COMB Board to evaluate a smaller
lower cost project. This new alternative still accomplishes the water quality
objective but decreases the amount of site access improvements. The Alternative
B plans and costs were reviewed by the COMB Board’s Lauro Debris Basin
Project Ad Hoc Committee. At President Evan’s request this groject will be
presented to the Goleta Water District Board on December 12". This project will
be presented to the COMB Board for approval at the December Board Meeting.

ITEM.H oS —
PAGE [




000'ssz’Lg 000'6ZY L% 000'925%
00p'FiLS 006'621% 00e'Lys %0] @ 7Isuon Buunp sagales uBisag+ UWpY 1284007 ISUCH
05.'822% £1.'652% £95'56% 2462@) Aouabupuoc)
000'5L6S OSR'BEDLE o8z ‘zpes jejoqns
000'os 05298 pse'zs Do's2d 00’528 00°'ced 47 08 uieipumaqg &IND B 0g
000'2% 00S'24 0o0'Le po'ozs 00°054% o00'obs a1 0g dol @ Aem,QJepun dND B 6L
000'0ES 000'SES Dog'ZL% 00'052% 00'008% 00°005% AD 0 U A, SlRI0U0D paaloiley gl
a0o'ag 005'0% O0E'LS 00013 00054 00'0L3 AD el peos Buoje yaig A do) Bujprln )
000'ze 005'E$ goo'ts 00'005°€$  00°000'L% 00'00s'L% g1 b DY MBN J28UUDD PUB JEPING X3 BAdway  §)
000244 005'2ES goo'ss 00'05% 00'521L% 00°S2LS a1 0ol adjd J8linG 4o Yaubz  5i
000's% 000'ss 000'%$ 00'0% 00'000'% 00°000'5% S1 ! usaIog/M JONNS JEIn0 ouaY paslomsy  §1
£o0'sg 0oo0'ss 000's$ 00'0$ 00’0004 0o'0% 87 ! anuenud sjeoojsy o) Buppuay g1
po0'ozs 000'ge% 0oo0'es% 00'es 0O'0% 00'25 45 000'y (.8L.E) Buned yeydsy  zZ1
000'02L% 0O0'tY L 000'2l% 00’24 00'ag 0004 48 000'zL (MEDO.PZB# IM b4,0) BujAed auoD |}
000'02% oog'Lzs ooo'eLd 00'8Le 00'0ls 00'SLE Bl 00z'l Aem||ids ‘auoD padiojuiay o) youl-e Ot
noo‘ogs 000'08% 000'8r% 0o'B% 0o oo'oLs 4s ooo'e sadols a12.0l0Us 5
00g'06% 000'06% 00Z'0L% S804 0s'v4 0514 ds 00021 Bujoe4 uajgen g
0oo'oLs 000'0LE 000'2% 00'0% DO'000 24 00°000'0L3 g1 L uojjelg Gupajemag ]
00a'ZLs 000'ZHE go0'a% 0o'els p0'6$ 0o'0Ls 41 ooa't sog|d-uj U[BIQ-gNS ‘Had OAd You-B8 B
poo'nasg poo'o0LE 000'9ES 0oels 00'82% 00°0S% AD 000'z ujeip-gns 10} ¥oolenell aae|d pue Lodw) g
000'001% 000'001% 000'sHs - 058 00'e% 0o'oLs AD opo'al sjualUyUeqws Yyues pesiojuley ‘1suoD t
. {pasn J0joEy GL°|)
000'084+$ 0000515 000'0s8 03218 00°93 00'sL$ AD 00o'oL [El3iely ssa0xF Jo asadsiQ pue ney €
'1sUog yueg peslojuiey Jod 'X81and
+ apelfigng o} J|8 "X3J aAoway pue
000'00ts 00S'L9LS ooo'ecs 05'84% 00'es no'ss AD 0oo0'sl jusiyuBqW pUE USBQ X3 BjeARIXS 2
000's9% 000'59% 000'0L3% p0'000'cas  00°000'0LE 00'000'SES 57 l *aut 3§ BUIpUOR+dddMS+ GON-2Q/q01 b
paysabbng ybH Mo U PUN WA IUN [WAIUN o e uopdpasag ‘N wway
509 Wway| is00 wa)| IS0 Wy s9juUBIn suBwysnn  SBus|]
G002 ‘vz ABW

V oAl

j08foid Juawsaacddw uiseq slqag JI0AIaSaY 0JNET
53500 UoyINASUDY 8]qEqO. JO UosuldO ANYNINIITHL

7
2

ITEM #

PAGE



| afied

$5'988'658% ejo1
G699 %0} @ UWPY UDONISUOY
BEZ'BS LS %gz © Aousbuyuon
00'£56'0899 [2101 gng
00°005°c$ GLL% 41 0z uelquuols ey /1l
00°000'2% 000'2% S b dDY MaU JoBUUOD pUB JBINQ "X3 dAoley g}
00'005'26% SrAR:S 47 02k add 19N0 UBIPWIOIS JaY UdUl-4Z Gl
00°000's% 000's¢ S b USSIOG/M 8INJONAS 18N "OU0D padiojuisy b
00'5.6'51% 00's$ 48 sil'e {.8/.8) Buned yeydsy ¢l
00°05£'€0% 00°L% 4S8 0S0'6 {M3D0 W2 @ A /M pl.9) Bulned Bj210U0D  EL
00°000'2Z1% 00'0L% 48 002't Aem||idg sjaiouo) paoiojuley Yoy youl-g ||
00°086% 00°G€$ AD 82 dey-diy 300y 0l
00°009'EES 00°9% 48 009's sado|g sjalojoys 6
00°002' L 7% 00'5% 48 o¥e's Buoe uoiges 8
00000014 000'01$ S A uojels Bupsiemeq .
00°S¥S'v% 00'6% 41 G0S goe(d-U| UlRI(-qNS PSJBIOHSd DAL Youl-g 9
D0'96€'6ES 00°82% AD  I0¥'L apeJBigns 00! UjeIp pue podu| g
00'eel '2vs 00'L% AD  6l0'8 SsjUsUn{UBGWZ YHEZ Paalojulsy JSuoD 14
00'v26'EC LS 00°9% AD  $59'02 (10104 G)"|) SS90X3 Jo 8sods|q g IneH €
00°052'26% 00°6% AD  0St'8l 'xalanQ g ado|g / UISeq "1S|X3 S1BABIX3 z
00°'000'56% 000'G6% 87 b 8oUBINSU| 'SPUCH ‘dddMS " GoWsa/qon b
junotuy aalld 1un nn AiD uopdilosaq  oN way)

g aANBUIR)IY

900Z JoqWaAON ‘PalIpo - 3oalold Uiseg sugaq olneT Joj ajewysy uewysng / gwoo

ITEM #

PAGE



Lauro Reservoir Debris Basin Project - Modified, November 2006

Estimated Budget Allocation

Based on Total Project Cost of $1,000,000
Based on anticipated unexpended revenue of 5508,372

Alternative B

. . Project Cost Unexpended Potential

Member Unit Allocation Distribution Revenue Alilocation
Goleta Water
District 40.4170% $404,170.00 $205,468.71 $198,701.29
City of S.B. 35.8803% $358,903.00 $182,456.24 $176,446.76
Carpinteria
Valley Water
District 12.1876% $121,976.00 $62,009.18 $5h9,966.82
Montecito Water
District 11.4951% $114,951.00 $58,437.87 $56,513.13
Total 100.00% $1,000,000.00| $508,372.00 $491,628.00

ITEM #
PAGE

Y




RIr01°O'M - Wy " - ) ~
pv— o
SN el T A .

it iirrintion o
“ONI 'SRAVIZ0SSY aNY SuRMeTd

DHYOU ZINPNLLATYIY ONY SHDRIY I YWY v
MSVE SIHEIT HIOAYISTY OUAYT

NYId DNIOYHED
WNLJIONCD

REUDSS wrATY

TR g

L1111 11

|

H 2ANBUITY

5

kid

PAGE™

rT VI

AT i) Sl e
T e W e e




Alternotive A

b7 g

Pl

7

~
2o

o7l
T

i

I

[N — L
' o

,b
5

GRADING PLAN
LAURD RESERVONR BERRIS BASIN

CACHUAMA OPERATIONT AND MAINTENANCE BOARS
s =V COUNTY CF BANTA DARBAA, CALIFOVINIA

Talpbeur PR M-S

PFLOWERS AND ASSOGIATES, NG,
. v

par,

Falie

1
e
seTon oo
AL v 1V

—

g

wm
SECTION -0
acad T Wiy

s
T Tt
7

=7y
E i
12
T 3

[~ —-——-—-'-'1i_'_‘:_/~"

g oty

Mag

H
£

[T

TN .
. muErerad L,

1
5
i
b
L
9

lrac b et WRAC ] S

PAGE




WILLIAM H. HAIR

KENNETH M. HIBH, JH.
MIGHAEL G. O'BHIEN
RANDALL H. GEORGE

JONATHAN FRASER LIGHT
WILLIAM E, WINFIELD
CHRISTOPHER K. KITASAKI
SCOTT B. SAMBKY-

GLENN J. DICKINSDN
NANCY MILLERA

JOEL MARK

DIANE L. SEGKER

MARIA L. CAPAITTO
NANCY KIERSTYN SCHAEINER
SUSAH M. SEEMILLER
KAREN L. GABLER
MELISSA H, SAYER
MEGHAN B. CLARK

GURTIS A, BRAHAM
EROOK J. CARROLL
SYLVIA 50670

STEVEN J, RENSHAW
BRIAN NOME

LAW OFFICES OF

. NORDMAN CORMANY HAIR & COMPTON LLP

‘1000 TOWN.CENTER DRIVE
SIXTH FLOOR

S S04 T DXNARD, CALIFQORNIA 53036-1132

{BO5) 4B5-1000

8™ FLOOR FAX (805) 988-8387
5" FLOOR FAX ({B05) 5B8-B357

WEBSITE: WWW.NCHC.COM

HEN E. NORDMAN
(1812 -~ 1835)

ARALPH L. CORMANY
{1821 — 2002}

LOUIS A. CAPPADDNA
PHILIP ©. DRESCHER
KENNETH . HDVET
- "FATRICK F. BRIGHT
{OF GOUNSEL)

18133 VENTURA BOULEVARD
PENTHOUSE A
ENGIND, CALIFOANIA 51436
(518} S86-nO80
FAX (018) 728-0947

WRITER'S DIRECT DIAL
{805) 98E-B306

WRITEA'S DIRECT FAX
(E05) D@a-7708

WHITER'SE EMAIL ADDRESS

MEENA P, KOTAK
ANGELA V. LOFEZ
JOSHUA M. BEST
PANDA L. KRDLL

ATREMBLEYONCHC,.COM

October 27, 2006

Ms. Kate Rees

General Manager

Cachuma Operation and Maintenance
Board

3301 Laure]l Canyon Rd.

Santa Barbara, CA 93105

Re: = Authority of COMB Board of Directors L
" Change in Interest Rates for Cachuma Renewal Master A
Contract '

Dear Kate:

You have asked us to render an opinion concerning the ability of the Board of
Directors of the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) to act on
behalf of COMB’s Member Units and accept an interest rate modification proposed
by the United States Bureau of Reclamation relative to the Cachuma Renewal
Master Contract, Contract No. I175r-1802IR (Cachuma. Renewal Master Contract).
On October 23, 2006, the Board of Directors took such action.

Section 3.1 of the 1996 “Amended and Restated Agreement for the
Establishment of the Board of Control to Operate and Maintain the Cachuma

Project-Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board” sets forth the general powers
of the COMB Board of Directors, as follows:

“3.1 Powers. The Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board shall
have the power generally to perform all acts necessary and convenient
to the purposes of the parties, including, without limitation, any and
all acts necessary to carry out fully, on behalf of each of the parties
hereto, the provisions of those agreements of the parties referred to

ITEM #__ [Da_

PAGE i

-—_—_-_*_-—h—-



Ms. Kate Rees

Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board
October 27, 2006

Page 2 '

herein as the “Contract for the Transfer of the Operation and
Maintenance of Cachuma Project” Contract No. 14-06-200-5222R (the
“Iransfer Agreement”); the “Contract Concerning the Transfer of
Operation and Maintenance of the Cachuma Project Works” all
renewals of Contracts No. I75r-1802, 175r-1802R and I75r-1802IR, all
other agreements made, and to be made, between the United States,
the Cachuma Project member units and all other agencies; and all
steps required by such contracts, Federal Reclamation law, and the
laws of the State of California to exercise the right of renewal(s).”

Since Section 3.1 expressly conveys to the COMB Board of Directors, among
other things, the authority to undertake all acts necessary to carry out fully on
behalf of the parties the provisions of the Cachuma Renewal Master Contract, it is
our opinion that the October 23, 2006 motion action by the COMB Board of
Directors on behalf of its Member Units, as described above, was legally valid and
appropriate.

Should you have any questions, please contact me.
Very truly yours,

NORDMAN COR

R & COMPTON LLP

Anthony H TrembW

AHT:pm
Ce:  William H. Hair, Esq.
12727\001\LTR\10277129.D0C

I'TEM #__(Ca

PAGE o




.CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
T 3301 LAUREL CANYON ROAD ¢
-~ SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA 93105:2017
TELEPHONE (805) 687-4011 FAX (B05)569-5825
- www.ccrb-comb.orgr
contactus@cachuma-board.org

October 24, 2006

Mr. Kirk Rodgers, Regional Director

U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, Mid-Pacific Region
2800 Cottage Way

Sacramento, CA 95825

RE:  Cachuma Project Renewal Master Contract Change in Interest Rate

Dear Mr. Rodgers:

Thank you for meeting with Greg Wilkinson and me last week about severa] Cachuma Project
issues. We thonght the meeting was very usefitl, and were very pleased with the outcome of our
discussion on bath the Laure Dam Safety of Dams Repayment Agreement and the change in
interest rate for the Cachuma Project Renewal Master Contract.

In response to a previous request on behalf of the Cachuma Member Units, you stated that you
would execute the Lauro SOD Repayment Agreement with no changes to the negotiated

Inigation/M&I percent water use allocations (51% Irigation; 49% M&I), if the Member Units
agreed 1o accept a 4.59% revised interest rate for the interest payable on the M&I capital costs

for the Cachuma Project. The proposed 4.59% would be retroactive to October 1, 2005 and
continue through September 30, 2015.

I am pleased to inform you that at its October 23, 2006 meeting, the COMB Board of Directors,

acting on behalf of the Cachuma Member Units, approved and accepted your proposed revised
interest rate by a motion action.

In March 2006, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the final Lauro Dam SOD
Repayment Agreement as negotiated in April 2005, and authorized its execution. Therefore, no
further action was taken at the October 23" Board meeting. With acceptance of the revised
4.59% interest rate for the Cachuma Renewal Master Contract, it is our understanding that there

will be no further changes to the repayment agreement and that you will expeditiously forward it
to COMB to be executed.

We truly appreciate your time and personal attention to these matters, and for proposing a very
fair and equitable resolution to finalize both of these contract negotiations. Please confirm your
approval and acceptance by signing two originals of this letter, and returning one of them to me.

ITEM #__[Ob
PAGE !

———



" "October 24, 2006
Page 2

T look forward to our continued cooperative relationship.

Very best regards,

Kate Rees
Interim General Manager

ce: Cachuma Project Member Units
John Davis, Deputy Regional Director, USBR
Michael Jackson, SCC Area Manager
Gregory Wilkinson, Best, Best & Krieger
William Hair, Nordman, Cormany Hair & Compton

ACCEPTED AND AGREED:
N Cholh, En
C. Charles Evans Kirk C. Rodgers
President Regional Director, Mid-Pacific Region
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board U. S. Bureau of Reclamation

KR.COMB/admin/MC interest rate/ICRodgers letter_102406

ITEM #_lob
PAGE _&.



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

MEMORANDUM
DATE: November 20, 2006
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kate Rees, Interim General Manager
Janet Gingras, Administrative Manager
RE: Renewal Master Contract Interest Rate Adjustment for Water Years 2006
and 2007
RECOMMENDATION:

None at this time. For information only.

DISCUSSION:

At the October 23, 2006 Board meeting, the COMB Board voted to accept a revised
interest rate of 4.59% effective October 1, 2005 for the remaining M&I capital cost of the
Cachuma Project, as proposed by Kirk Rodgers, Reclamation Regional Director. The
new interest rate calculation will begin with WY 2008. The water rates will not change or
be recalculated for WY 2006 and WY 2007 because Reclamation has already distributed
those bills and received payment. Instead, Reclamation will re-calculate the interest rate
for WY 2006 and 2007 at the 4.59% and re-distribute the corresponding revenues
already received so that Reclamation Q&M expense and interest costs are paid for first
with the remaining funds being allocated to pay off of the M&I capital debt balance.

Basically, previous payments for WY 2006 and 2007 will go to capture the additional
1.59% interest owed to Reclamation, and the balance of those payments will then be
applied toward M&| capital costs. This will create a slightly higher capital component in
WY 2008, but eliminates the need for the Member Units to pay the additional amount
owed to the United States now.

Nothing has changed relative to the way Reclamation will calculate the Cachuma water
rates in future. For the remaining water years 2008 through 2015, an interest rate of
4.59% will be used to calculate the M&| water rate. The capital balance will be

redistributed over the remaining repayment pericds and still accomplish paying off the
capital balance by 2015.

kr.comb/admin/board memos/112006_MC Interest rate ad]

ITEM #__(Dc¢
PAGE l




FYI



CACHUMA OPERATION AHD MAINTENANCE BOARD
: ‘ 3301 LAUREL CANYON ROAD
SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA §3105-2017
TELEPHONE (BOS5) 687-4011 FAX (805)568-5825
www.ccrb-comb,org
contactus@cachuma-board.org

October 23, 2006

Harlan Burchardi, President and Board of Trustees

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No 1
P.O. Box 157

Santa Ynez, CA 93460

RE: Letter from Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No. 1
Regarding Joint Representation Arrangements

Dear Harlan and Members of the Board of Trustees:

Thank you for your letter of September 22, 2006. We think that consideration of your
comments can and should be placed in the context of the current reorganization
evaluation going on by the combined COMB-CCRB Boards and the ID No. 1 Board.
Steve Mack and Chip Wullbrandt, as representatives from staff and counsel of the South
Coast Member Units, have recently met with your manager, Chris Dahlstrom, and your
counsel, Gary Kvistad, to discuss how we can cooperatively address each of the concerns
in your September 22, 2006 letter during the reorganization process. We are hopeful that,
with your support, the reorganization will soon come to fruition.

In the meantime, we will follow the provisions contained in the existing joint
representation agreement. '

We trust this interim response is acceptable to you.

Yours very truly,

CRuclt S

Chuck Evans, President
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

cc: Carpinteria Vailey Water District
City of Santa Barbara
Goleta Water District
Montecito Water District
Cachuma Conservation Release Board

Carpinteria Valley Water District
City of Santa Barbara
Goleta Water District
Montecito Water District
Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District #)]
General Manager/Secretary of the Board, Kathleen A. Rees



